NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF
THE CITY OF BURNET

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Council Meeting will be held by the governing
body of the above named City on the 12™ day of February, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. in the
Council Chambers, Burnet Municipal Airport, 2402 S. Water, Burnet, at which time the
following subjects will be discussed, to-wit:

This notice is posted pursuant to the Texas Government Code, Chapter 8551-Open
Meetings.

CALL TO ORDER:
INVOCATION:
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
PLEDGE TO TEXAS FLAG:
1. PUBLIC RECOGNITION/SPECIAL REPORTS:
1.1) Proclamation: Veteran’s Suicide Prevention Month: Mayor Crista Bromley

2. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:

(All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Council and
will be enacted with one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council
Member, staff member or citizen requests removal of the item from the consent agenda for the purpose of
discussion. For removal of an item, a request must be made to the Council when the Consent Agenda is
opened for Council Action.)

2.1) Approval of the January 22", 2019 Regular Council Meeting minutes
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

3.1) Public Hearing: The City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas will hold a public
hearing regarding the proposed Eagle’s Nest Section 3 Preliminary Plat, a 13-lot
single-family subdivision, which is approximately 17.45 acres described as being a
replat of lot 76R out of Eagle’'s Nest Section 2, and further described as being
generally located on the east side of Eagle Ridge, approximately 1,100 feet north of
the intersection with Buchanan Drive (State Hwy. 29): W. Meshier



3.2) Public Hearing: The City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas will hold a public
hearing regarding a request to rezone approximately 1.00 acre, having a legal
description of S4345 F.O.C. Subdivision, Lot 1, from its present designation of Heavy
Industrial—District “I-2” to a designation of Light Commercial—District “C-1,” said
tract being generally located on the north side of Ellen Halbert Drive, approximately
884 feet west of the intersection with Houston Clinton Drive: W. Meshier

3.3) Public Hearing: The City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas will hold a public
hearing regarding a request to rezone approximately 2.76 acres out of the B.B.
Castleberry Survey, Abstract Number 187, from its present designation of
Agricultural—District “A” to a designation of Single-Family Residential—District “R-1,”
said tract being known as 1139 Mormon Mill Road, generally located on the north
side of Mormon Mill Road and south of the railroad: W. Meshier

3.4) Public Hearing: The City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas will hold a public
hearing regarding an ordinance amending the City’s tree preservation, mitigation and
removal standards: W. Meshier

ACTION ITEMS:

4.1) Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF
BURNET, TEXAS, CHAPTER 98 — SUBDIVISIONS, SECTIONS 98-7, 98- 22, 98-
23, AND APPENDIX B, ADOPTING CHAPTER 98, ARTICLE IX - TREE
PRESERVATION, MITIGATION, AND REMOVAL, AND AMENDING CHAPTER 118
— ZONING, SECTIONS 118-61 AND 118-62; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE;
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE;
FINDING PROPER NOTICE OF MEETING; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE: W. Meshier

4.2) Discuss and consider action: Request for a variance to Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 98, Section 98-42 for the proposed Preliminary Plat of Eagle’s Nest, Section
3, for the purpose of exceeding the maximum length of a cul-de-sac: W. Meshier

4.3) Discuss and consider action: Eagle’s Nest Section 3 Preliminary Plat, a 13-lot
single-family subdivision, which is approximately 17.45 acres described as being a
replat of lot 76R out of Eagle’'s Nest Section 2, and further described as being
generally located on the east side of Eagle Ridge, approximately 1,100 feet north of
the intersection with Buchanan Drive (State Hwy. 29): W. Meshier

4.4) Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2012-06 TO REZONE APPROXIMATELY 1.00
ACRE, HAVING A LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF S4345 F.O.C. SUBDIVISION, LOT 1,
FROM ITS PRESENT DESIGNATION OF HEAVY INDUSTRIAL—DISTRICT “I-2”
TO A DESIGNATION OF LIGHT COMMERCIAL—DISTRICT “C-1,” SAID TRACT
BEING GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF ELLEN HALBERT



7.

8.

DRIVE, APPROXIMATELY 884 FEET WEST OF THE INTERSECTION WITH
HOUSTON CLINTON DRIVE: W. Meshier

4.5) Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2012-06 TO REZONE APPROXIMATELY 2.76
ACRES OUT OF THE B.B. CASTLEBERRY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 187,
FROM ITS PRESENT DESIGNATION OF AGRICULTURAL—DISTRICT “A” TO A
DESIGNATION OF SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL—DISTRICT *“R-1,” SAID
TRACT, KNOWN AS 1139 MORMON MILL ROAD BEING GENERALLY LOCATED
ON THE NORTH SIDE OF MORMON MILL ROAD AND SOUTH OF THE
RAILROAD; PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE: W. Meshier

4.6) Discuss and consider action: Authorize and approve the purchase of four (4)
Level IlIA Ballistic Vests for the Police Department patrol officers: P. Nelson

REPORTS:

5.1) Addendum to the City Council Agenda: Department and Committee
Reports/Briefings: The City Council may or may not receive a briefing dependent
upon activity or change in status regarding the matter. The listing is provided to
give notice to the public that a briefing to the Council on any or all subjects may
occur.

5.1(E.3) Annual Racial Profiling Report: P. Nelson
EXECUTIVE SESSION:
6.1) Executive Session: The City of Burnet City Council shall meet in Executive
Session in accordance to the provision of the Open Meetings Act, Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, and Sub-section 8551.072 - deliberations
regarding real property, commonly known as the Ward property, Lot 2A: L. Baugh
6.2) Executive Session: The City of Burnet City Council shall meet in Executive
Session in accordance to the provision of the Open Meetings Act, Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, and Sub-section 8551.072 - deliberations
regarding real property, commonly known as the Fox property, Lot 30,: L. Baugh
RECONVENE TO REGULAR SESSION FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:
7.1) Discuss and consider action: Regarding the Ward property, Lot 2A: L. Baugh
7.2) Discuss and consider action: Regarding the Fox property, Lot 30: L. Baugh

REQUESTS FROM COUNCIL FOR FUTURE REPORTS:



9. ADJOURN:
Dated this 8" day, of February, 2019

CITY OF BURNET

CRISTA GOBLE BROMLEY, MAYOR

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above NOTICE OF MEETING of the governing body
of the above named City, BURNET, is a true and correct copy of said NOTICE and that | posted a true and
correct copy of said NOTICE on the bulletin board, in the City Hall of said City, BURNET, TEXAS, a place
convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said NOTICE was posted on
February 8, 2019, at or before 6 o'clock p.m. and remained posted continuously for at least 72 hours
preceding the scheduled time of said Meeting.

Kelly Dix, City Secretary

NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT THE PUBLIC MEETINGS:

The City Council Chamber is wheelchair accessible. Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need
auxiliary aids or services, such as interpreters for persons who are deaf or hearing impaired, readers, or large print, are requested to
contact the City Secretary’s office (512.756.6093) at least two working days prior to the meeting. Requests for information may be
faxed to the City Secretary at 512.756.8560.

RIGHT TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Council for the City of Burnet reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this
meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with
Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel
Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices) and 551.087 (Economic Development).



Proclamation

OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL FOR THE
CITY OF BURNET

gﬁkt’&?ﬁ,’ according to the most recent U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs study,
approximately 20 veterans die by suicide every day in the United States; and

gﬁkt’&?ﬁ,’ veterans face a disproportionate risk of suicide when compared to the general
population; and

gﬁkt’&?ﬁ,’ the risk of suicide can be reduced through awareness, proper education,
resources, and treatment; and

gm&?ﬁ,' suicide affects each and every one of us in some way and it is up to us to help
those we love by being good neighbors, good friends and good family members if we are to
protect our veterans from such a tragic fate;

AL
e
:?ffc\_;g;,

ﬁﬂm, tﬁet‘efat‘e, be it proclaimed, that I, Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor of the City

of Burnet on behalf of the City Council, of the City of Burnet, Texas, do hereby declare the
month of February 2019 to be observed as

Peterans Suicide ivareness
fHonth

and encourage all residents of the City of Burnet to recognize how serious suicide is and the
steps each of us can take to protect those around us from such tragedy.

Z‘n witness thereof, I hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the City of Burnet to be affixed
this 129 day of JFebruary 2019.

Crista Boble Bromley, Hapor



STATE OF TEXAS {
COUNTY OF BURNET  {}
CITY OF BURNET i

On this the 22™ day of January, 2019, the City Council of the City of Burnet convened in Regular
Session, at 6:00 p.m., at the regular meeting place thereof with the following members present, to-
wit:

Mayor Crista Goble Bromley

Council Members Mary Jane Shanes, Danny Lester, Cindia Talamantez, Tres Clinton
Absent Paul Farmer, Joyce Laudenschlager

City Manager David Vaughn

City Secretary Kelly Dix

Guests: Mark Lewis, Gene Courtney, Mark Ingram, Patricia Langford, Jason Davis, Alan Burdell,
Adrienne Feild, Wallis Meshier, Evan Milliorn, Leslie Baugh, James Wilson, Craig Lindholm,
Savanna Gregg, Bettye Foulds, Gina Glaeser, Kim Winkler

CALL TO ORDER: The meeting was called to order by Mayor Bromley, at 6:00 p.m.
INVOCATION: Council Member Mary Jane Shanes

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Council Member Tres Clinton

PLEDGE TO TEXAS FLAG: Council Member Tres Clinton

PUBLIC RECOGNITION/SPECIAL REPORTS:

Chamber of Commerce Report:

Burnet Chamber of Commerce Board Member Gina Glaeser updated the Council on current events
at the Chamber. The Christmas on the Square event was well attended, even with the bad weather.
The snow area was definitely a major draw. Chamber Director Kim Winkler is working on
certification with the States Texas Music Office for the City of Burnet to become a State recognized
music friendly city.

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:

(All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the
Council and will be enacted with one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items
unless a Council Member, staff member or citizen requests removal of the item from the consent
agenda for the purpose of discussion. For removal of an item, a request must be made to the
Council when the Consent Agenda is opened for Council Action.)

Approval of the January 8, 2019 Regular Council Meeting minutes

Council Member Cindia Talamantez moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Council
Member Mary Jane Shanes seconded, the motion carried unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARINGS: None.

ACTION ITEMS:

Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS,
ORDERING A GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 4, 2019, TO ELECT A MAYOR
AND THREE CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS:; ESTABLISHING THE ELECTION PROCEDURE;
AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS: K. Dix:

UNA RESOLUCION DE LA CIUDAD DE BURNET, TEXAS, ORDENANDO UNA ELECCION
GENERAL A LLEVARSE A CABOEL 7 DE MAYO DE 2017, PARA ELEGIR EL ALCALDE
Y TRES MIEMBROS DEL CONSEJO (CONCEJALES); ESTABLECIENDO LOS
PROCEDIMIENTOS PARA LA ELECCION:Y PROVEYENDO OTROS ASUNTOS
RELACIONADOS: K. Dix: Council Member Mary Jane Shanes made a motion to approve and




adopt Resolution R2019-03 as presented. Council Member Danny Lester seconded, the motion
carried unanimously.

Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE
CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE 2017-18; THE ORIGINAL BUDGET
ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2017, AND ENDING
SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 FOR THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, FUNDING ACCOUNTS IN
BUDGET DUE TO UNFORESEEN SITUATIONS; CONTAINING FINDINGS PROVIDING
FOR SAVINGS AND SEVERABILITY: P. Langford: Council Member Mary Jane Shanes made a
motion to approve and adopt Ordinance 2018-20 as presented. Council Member Cindia Talamantez
seconded, the motion carried unanimously.

Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE TO
REZONE 34.068 ACRES OUT OF THE B.B. CASTLEBERRY SURVEY, ABSTRACT
NUMBER 187 FROM ITS PRESENT DESIGNATION OF SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL—
DISTRICT “R-17 TO A DESIGNATION OF GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC
INSTITUTIONAL—DISTRICT “G,” SAID TRACT BEING FURTHER DESCRIBED AS 1601
SOUTH WATER STREET, AND BEING GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF
SOUTH WATER STREET (HWY. 281), APPROXIMATELY 1,120 FEET SOUTH OF THE
INTERSECTION WITH ARISTOKRAFT DRIVE: W. Meshier: Council Member Tres Clinton
made a motion to approve and adopt Ordinance 2019-03 as presented. Council Member Mary Jane
Shanes seconded, the motion carried unanimously.

Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE
OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, CHAPTER 98 -SUBDIVISIONS,
SECTIONS 98-7, 98-22, 98-23, AND APPENDIX B, ADOPTING CHAPTER 98, ARTICLE IX -
TREE PRESERVATION, MITIGATION, AND REMOVAL, AND AMENDING CHAPTER 118
—ZONING, SECTIONS 118-61 AND 118-62; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE; FINDING PROPER
NOTICE OF MEETING; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE: W. Meshier: Council
Member Mary Jane Shanes made a motion to approve the first reading of ordinance 2019-04 as
presented. Council Member Danny Lester seconded the motion carried unanimously

Discuss and consider action: Approve a quote and authorize the purchase of a 2019 Ford F350
Diesel Ambulance for the Burnet Fire Department: M. Ingram: Council Member Danny Lester
made a motion to approve the quote presented and authorize the purchase of a 2019 Ford F350
Diesel Ambulance for the Burnet Fire Department. Council Member Mary Jane Shanes seconded,
the motion carried unanimously.

Discuss and consider action: Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with HVS for a hotel
feasibility study: D. Vaughn: Council Member Mary Jane Shanes made a motion to authorize the
City of Burnet Economic Development Board to execute a contract with HV'S for a hotel feasibility
study. Council Member Danny Lester seconded, the motion carried unanimously.

REPORTS:

Addendum to the City Council Agenda: Department and Committee Reports/Briefings: The City
Council may or may not receive a briefing dependent upon activity or change in status regarding the
matter. The listing is provided to give notice to the public that a briefing to the Council on any or
all subjects may occur.

Presentation of the December 2018 Financial Report: P. Langford: Director of Finance, Patricia
Langford addressed the Council and reviewed the revenue and expenses for the month of
December. Property Tax revenue is slightly down and should balance out over the next month or so




with collection deadline being January 31, 2019. Expenses are remaining steady in all funds.
REQUESTS FROM COUNCIL FOR FUTURE REPORTS: Council Member Mary Jane Shanes
requested the City Manager give a brief update report on the ICSC Conference that David, Leslie
and Evan attended last week. City Manager David Vaughn addressed Council, and explained that
the conference attracts business owners that are looking for locations/areas to expand their business
in. Mr. Vaughn said he was presently surprised by the many hotels that are interested in the Burnet
area and that follow up meetings were being scheduled with several potential Hoteliers. Mr.
Vaughn shared his appreciation for Leslie Baugh and Evan Milliorn’ s dedication and participation
in putting the event together.

ADJOURN: There being no further business a motion to adjourn was made by Council Member
Mary Jane Shanes at 6:34 p.m., seconded by Council Member Danny Lester. The motion carried
unanimously.

ATTEST: Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor

Kelly Dix, City Secretary



Meeting Date:

Agenda Item:

Background:

Information:

Development Services ITEM 3.1

Wallis Meshier, CNU-A

Director of Development Services
(512)-715-3215
wmeshier@cityofburnet.com

Agenda Item Brief

February 12, 2019

Public Hearing: The City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas
will hold a public hearing regarding the proposed Eagle’s
Nest Section 3 Preliminary Plat, a 13-lot single-family
subdivision, which is approximately 17.45 acres described
as being a replat of lot 76R out of Eagle’s Nest Section 2,
and further described as being generally located on the
east side of Eagle Ridge, approximately 1,100 feet north of
the intersection with Buchanan Drive (State Hwy. 29): W.
Meshier

The proposed Eagle’s Nest Section 3 Preliminary Plat is a
single-family residential subdivision located on 17.45 acres
of property located on the east side of Eagle Ridge (Exhibit
A). The proposed subdivision will include thirteen (13)
residential lots ranging in size from 1.01 acres to 2.56 acres.

The subdivision will gain access from Eagle Ridge via the
proposed Montgomery Cove. Montgomery Cove is a
proposed dead-end cul-de-sac with an approximate length of
800 feet. Per Sec. 98-42, the maximum length for a cul-de-
sac is 600 feet. Therefore, the proposed preliminary plat will
require approval of a subdivision variance (Item 5.1) as a
condition of approval.

The proposed Eagle’s Nest Section 3 Preliminary Plat has
been reviewed for conformance with Chapter 98 of the City
of Burnet Code of Ordinances, and has been found to
comply with all requirements relating to form and content
with the exception of Sec. 98-42 as it pertains to the
maximum length of a cul-de-sac.

The preliminary drainage plan submitted in conjunction with
the plat has been reviewed by the City Engineer and was
found to be in compliance with applicable Code of Ordinance
requirements.



Fiscal Impact:

Recommendation:

A tree survey was submitted in accordance with Sec. 98-22,
which shows no protected trees located within the proposed
right-of-way. Conformance with the City’s tree preservation,

mitigation, and removal standards will be ensured during the
construction plan review phase.

A notice of public hearing, as required by Code of Ordinance
Sec. 98-22 and 98-25, was published in the Burnet Bulletin
on January 16, 2019. Written notices were mailed to the
owners of all eight (8) properties located within 200 feet of
the subject property. As of the date of this report, no written
responses have been received in support or opposition.



EXHIBIT “A”
Location




Meeting Date:

Public Hearing:

Background:

Information:

Development Services ITEM 3.2

Wallis Meshier

Director of Development Services
(512) 715-3215
wmeshier@cityofburnet.com

Agenda Item Brief

February 12, 2019

The City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas will hold a
public hearing regarding a request to rezone approximately
1.00 acre, having a legal description of S4345 F.O.C.
Subdivision, Lot 1, from its present designation of Heavy
Industrial—District  “I-2” to a designation of Light
Commercial—District “C-1,” said tract being generally
located on the north side of Ellen Halbert Drive,
approximately 884 feet west of the intersection with Houston
Clinton Drive: W. Meshier

This item is for consideration of a request to rezone a one-
acre property generally located between the Burnet
Municipal Airport and the Texas Department of Criminal
Justice facility on the north side of Ellen Halbert Drive
(Exhibit A). The subject property is currently zoned Heavy
Industrial — District “I-2” (Exhibit B). The applicant has
requested to rezone the property to Light Commercial —
District “C-1".

District “C-1" (Light Commercial) is governed by Sec. 118-45
of the Code of Ordinances and allows a mix of commercial
uses including, retail, office, light commercial, and similar
uses excluding residential and multifamily.” Permitted uses
include banks, personal services, professional services,
restaurants, daycares, and real estate offices.

When acting on a zone change request, the usual factors
considered include consistency with the Future Land Use
Map (FLUM) and existing patterns of development.

Chapter 1 of the City’'s Comprehensive Development Plan
includes the following statements:



The [Comprehensive Development] Plan [...] provides
general policy guidelines and principles for achieving
physical development goals.

[The Comprehensive Plan] is an instrument to guide the
physical development of the community in an orderly and
constructive manner. [...] The plan is intended to provide
local elected officials with a foundation upon which sound
decisions can be made regarding the future physical
development of the City of Burnet.

Chapter 5 of the Plan notes the following regarding future
land use:

The primary purpose of land use planning is to set forth
policies regarding existing and future uses of public and
private property. The plan establishes the types of
relationships among land uses that a city would like to
encourage.

The FLUM designates this property as being intended for
future industrial development (Exhibit C). Although the
proposed “C-1" (Light Commercial) designation is not
consistent with the FLUM recommendation for this area, staff
is of the determination that the proposed “C-1" (Light
Commercial) zoning is appropriate given the property
immediately to the south and west is designated for
commercial use.

An analysis of the property adjacent to the subject parcel is
as follows:

North South East West
Zonlng HI_21! HC_ZH HI_21! HC_ZH
FLUM Commercial Commercial Industrial Commercial
Land Use Vacant Vacant Vacant Vacant

Fiscal Impact:

Staff Recommendation:

A Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Burnet
Bulletin on January 23, 2019 regarding this request, and
written notices were mailed to four (4) surrounding property
owners within 200 feet of the subject property. As of the date
of this report, no written responses in support or opposition
have been received.



Exhibit “A”
Location Map & Aerial




Exhibit “B”
Present Zoning




EXHIBIT “C”
Future Land Use Map (FLUM)

,,,,,,,,,,,,

Government Commercial Residential Open Space Industrial



Meeting Date:

Agenda Item:

Background:

Information:

Development Services ITEM 3.3

Wallis Meshier

Director of Development Services
(512) 715-3215
wmeshier@cityofburnet.com

Agenda Item Brief
February 12, 2019

Public Hearing: The City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas
will hold a public hearing regarding a request to rezone
approximately 2.76 acres out of the B.B. Castleberry
Survey, Abstract Number 187, from its present designation
of Agricultural—District “A” to a designation of Single-Family
Residential—District “R-1,” said tract being known as 1139
Mormon Mill Road, generally located on the north side of
Mormon Mill Road and south of the railroad: W. Meshier

This item is for consideration of a request to rezone a 2.76
acre property generally located north of Mormon Mill Road
and south of the railroad tracks (Exhibit A). The subject
property is currently zoned Agricultural — District “A” (Exhibit
B). The applicant has requested to rezone the property to
Single Family Residential — District “R-1".

District “R-1" (Single-Family Residential) is governed by Sec.
118-25 of the Code of Ordinances and allows “detached
single family dwellings with a minimum of 1,100 square feet
of living area, and related accessory structures, on a
minimum lot size of 7,600 square foot.” Permitted uses
include single family homes, parks, playgrounds, public
buildings, police stations, and fire stations.

When acting on a zone change request, the usual factors
considered include consistency with the Future Land Use
Map (FLUM) and existing patterns of development.

Chapter 1 of the City’'s Comprehensive Development Plan
includes the following statements:

The [Comprehensive Development] Plan [...] provides
general policy guidelines and principles for achieving
physical development goals.



[The Comprehensive Plan] is an instrument to guide the
physical development of the community in an orderly and
constructive manner. [...] The plan is intended to provide
local elected officials with a foundation upon which sound
decisions can be made regarding the future physical
development of the City of Burnet.

Chapter 5 of the Plan notes the following regarding future
land use:

The primary purpose of land use planning is to set forth
policies regarding existing and future uses of public and
private property. The plan establishes the types of
relationships among land uses that a city would like to
encourage.

The FLUM designation for the subject property is
Residential. The proposed “R-1" (Single-Family Residential)
zoning designation is consistent with the FLUM
recommendation for this area. The proposed zoning is also
consistent with the property immediately to the east.

An analysis of the property adjacent to the subject parcel is
as follows:

North South East West
Zoning “A” “A” [ “R-1" “R-1" “A”
FLUM Open Space Residential / Residential Residential
Gowv.
Land Use Railroad / Low-Density Single-Family | Low-Density
Vacant Residential / Residential Residential /
Vacant Railroad

Fiscal Impact:

Recommendation:

A Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Burnet
Bulletin on January 23, 2019 regarding this request, and
written notices were mailed to seventeen (17) surrounding
property owners within 200 feet of the subject property. As of
the date of this report, no written responses in support or
opposition have been received.



Exhibit “A”
Location Map & Aerial




Exhibit “B”
Present Zoning




-
L




Meeting Date:

Agenda Item:

Background:

Information:

Fiscal Impact:

Staff Recommendation:

Development Services ITEM 3.4

Wallis Meshier

Director of Development Services
(512) 715-3215
wmeshier@cityofburnet.com

Agenda Item Brief
February 12, 2019

Public Hearing: The City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas will
hold a public hearing regarding an ordinance amending the City's
tree preservation, mitigation and removal standards: W. Meshier

The attached ordinance, if approved by the City Council, will
amend the Code of Ordinances as it pertains to the preservation,
mitigation, and removal of existing trees.

After reviewing the requirements of other cities in the region, we
believe that our provisions regarding tree preservation and
mitigation to be overly restrictive in some areas and not
restrictive enough in other areas. The intent of the proposed
amendment is to alleviate the burden of requiring mitigation for
relatively small trees, and to provide additional flexibility for
developers by allowing for off-site mitigation and/or payment of a
fee-in-lieu of mitigation.

In addition, the existing tree preservation and mitigation
standards are applicable only to property for which a Preliminary
Plat is required. The proposed amendments would make tree
preservation standards applicable to any site development or
redevelopment, even if no platting action is required.

The proposed amendment incorporates a requirement for
protective fencing to be installed around protected trees during
construction. The proposed amendment also includes
amendments to some of the existing definitions found in Sec. 98-
7, and incorporates additional definitions. It also includes
amendments to the list of preferred plant species found in
Chapter 98, Appendix B, and incorporates a list of nuisance
species.

The first reading of this ordinance was approved unanimously by
City Council on January 22, 2019. Several changes have been
made since that meeting, most notably the creation of a third
category of protected tree.



Meeting Date:

Agenda Item:

Background:

Recommendation:

Development Services ITEM 4.1

Wallis Meshier

Director of Development Services
(512) 715-3215
wmeshier@cityofburnet.com

Agenda Item Brief

February 12, 2019

Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS,
CHAPTER 98 - SUBDIVISIONS, SECTIONS 98-7, 98-22, 98-23, AND
APPENDIX B, ADOPTING CHAPTER 98, ARTICLE IX — TREE PRESERVATION,
MITIGATION, AND REMOVAL, AND AMENDING CHAPTER 118 — ZONING,
SECTIONS 118-61 AND 118-62; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE; FINDING
PROPER NOTICE OF MEETING; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE: W.
Meshier

The attached ordinance, if approved by the City Council, will amend the Code of
Ordinances as it pertains to the preservation, mitigation, and removal of existing
trees.

After reviewing the requirements of other cities in the region, we believe that our
provisions regarding tree preservation and mitigation to be overly restrictive in
some areas and not restrictive enough in other areas. The intent of the proposed
amendment is to alleviate the burden of requiring mitigation for relatively small
trees, and to provide additional flexibility for developers by allowing for off-site
mitigation and/or payment of a fee-in-lieu of mitigation.

In addition, the existing tree preservation and mitigation standards are applicable
only to property for which a Preliminary Plat is required. The proposed
amendments would make tree preservation standards applicable to any site
development or redevelopment, even if no platting action is required.

The proposed amendment incorporates a requirement for protective fencing to be
installed around protected trees during construction. The proposed amendment
also includes amendments to some of the existing definitions found in Sec. 98-7,
and incorporates additional definitions. It also includes amendments to the list of
preferred plant species found in Chapter 98, Appendix B, and incorporates a list of
nuisance species.

Staff recommends approval and adoption of Ordinance 2019-04 as presented.



ORDINANCE 2019-04

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BURNET,
TEXAS, CHAPTER 98 — SUBDIVISIONS, SECTIONS 98-7, 98-22, 98-23, AND APPENDIX B,
ADOPTING CHAPTER 98, ARTICLE IX - TREE PRESERVATION, MITIGATION, AND
REMOVAL, AND AMENDING CHAPTER 118 — ZONING, SECTIONS 118-61 AND 118-62;
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE,; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A
REPEALER CLAUSE; FINDING PROPER NOTICE OF MEETING; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Council seeks to amend the Code of Ordinances, Chapters 98 and 118, incorporating
amendments regarding tree preservation, mitigation, and removal; and

WHEREAS, the City Council determines that the amendment provided for herein promotes the health,
safety, morals and protects and preserves the general welfare of the community; and

WHEREAS, on the 12" day of February, 2019, after proper notification, the City Council held a public
hearing on the proposed amendment; and

WHEREAS, all requirements set forth in Chapter 212, Section 212.905, Texas Local Government Code
concerning regulation of tree removal has been fully complied with,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS:

Section 1. That the foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted by
the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.

Section 2. That the City of Burnet Code of Ordinances, Chapter 98, Article |,
Sec. 98-7. - Definitions, is hereby amended to include the changes described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and
incorporated herein.

Section 2. That the City of Burnet Code of Ordinances, Chapter 98, Article I,
Sec. 98-22. - Preliminary plat, and Chapter 98, Article Il, Sec. 98-23. - Construction plans, are hereby amended to
include the changes described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein.

Section 3. That the City of Burnet Code of Ordinances, Chapter 98, Appendix B. — Preferred Plant
Species, is hereby removed in its entirety.

Section 4. That the City of Burnet Code of Ordinances, Chapter 98, Article IX, is hereby adopted and
added to include the changes described in Exhibit “C” attached hereto and incorporated herein.

Section 5. That the City of Burnet Code of Ordinances, Chapter 118, Article I,
Sec. 118-61. - Construction Plans, and Chapter 118, Article Il, Sec. 118-62. - Landscaping and screening
requirements, are hereby amended to include the changes described in Exhibit “D” attached hereto and
incorporated herein.

Section 6. Savings clause. The repeal of any ordinance or part of ordinances effectuated by the
enactment of this ordinance shall not be construed as abandoning any action now pending under or by virtue of
such ordinance or as discontinuing, abating, modifying or altering any penalty accruing or to accrue, or as
affecting any rights of the City under any section or provisions of any ordinances at the time of passage of this
ordinance.

Section 7. Severability clause. The provisions of this ordinance are severable, and if any sentence,
section, or other parts of this ordinance should be found to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the remaining
provisions, and the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect.



SECTION 8. Repealer clause. The provisions of this ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances
or parts of ordinances governing or regulating the same subject matter as that covered herein, provided,
however, that all prior ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict with any of the provisions of
this ordinance are hereby expressly repealed to the extent that such inconsistency is apparent. This ordinance
shall not be construed to require or allow any act that is prohibited by any other ordinance.

SECTION 9. Open meeting clause. The City Council hereby finds and declares that written notice of the
date, hour, place, and subject of the meeting at which this ordinance was adopted was posted and that such
meeting was open to the public as required by law at all times during which this ordinance and the subject hereof
were discussed, considered, and formerly acted upon, all as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551,
Texas Government Code, as amended.

SECTION 10. Effective date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.
READ AND APPROVED on first reading this 22" day of January, 2019.
PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading this 12" day of February, 2019.

CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS

ATTEST:

Crista Goble, Mayor

Kelly Dix, City Secretary



Exhibit “A”

Amendments to Sec. 98-7



Chapter 98 - SUBDIVISIONS
ARTICLE I. - GENERAL PROVISIONS
Sec. 98-7. - Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed to
them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning. Words used in the
present tense include the future tense. Words used in the plural number include the singular, and words in the
singular include the plural. The word "shall" is always mandatory. The word "herein" means in this chapter.
The word "regulations” means the provisions of any applicable ordinance, rule, regulation or policy. The
word "person” means any human being or legal entity and includes a corporation, a partnership, and an
incorporated or unincorporated association. The words "used or occupied™ as applied to any land or building
shall be construed to include the words intended, arranged, or designed to be used or occupied.

Access means a way of approaching or entering a property.

Access street means a street providing access to cluster housing units limited to ten dwelling units or less.
Access streets provide direct vehicular access to individual garages, drives, or a common parking court.

Adjacent means abutting and directly connected to or bordering on.

Administratively complete means a plan or plat tendered to the city with all of the appropriate fees,
documents, data and information required in this chapter and other applicable ordinances.

Alley means a minor right-of-way, dedicated to public use, which gives a secondary means of vehicular
access to the back or side of properties otherwise abutting a street, and which may be used for public utility
purposes.

Applicant means a person applying for plat approval under this chapter.

Approval means the final approval in a series of required actions. For instance, the approval date of a plat
requiring approval of the commission and then the council is the date of council approval.

Arterial street means a principal traffic artery or traffic way, having continuous routing over long
distances, whose function is to serve as a principal connecting street with state or federal highways.

As-built-plans means a set of construction plans certified by a registered professional engineer specifying
how the public improvements required for the subdivision were actually constructed.

Attendant documents means either material needed to address the specific requirements of this chapter
which are not shown on plats or plans, or any information which the developer feels necessary to explain the
submittal.

Block means a parcel of land, intended to be used for development purposes, which is entirely surrounded
by public streets, highways, railroad right-of-way, public walks, parks or green strips, rural land, drainage
channels, or a combination thereof.

Bond means any form of security including a cash deposit, surety bond, collateral, property, or
instrument of credit in an amount and form satisfactory to the city council.

Buffer yard means a land area used to separate one use from another or to shield, reduce or block noise,



lights, or other nuisances.

Building or setback line means a line or lines designating the interior limit of the area of a lot within
which structures may be erected. The building lines generally provide the boundaries of the buildable area
of any given lot.

Buffer means a barrier constructed of wood, masonry, vegetation, and/or other landscape material in such
a manner that adjacent uses will be separated to such a degree that objectionable noise, heat, glare, visual

clutter, dust, loss of privacy, air circulation, and other negative externalities shall be abated.

Caliper inch is a unit of measurement used to state, in inches, the diameter of a tree's trunk at a height of four feet six inches from the base of the tree

at grade level.
Centerline, when referring to a waterway or drainage, means the centerline of the waterway and refers to

existing topographically defined channels. If not readily discernible, the centerline shall be determined by
(first) the low flow line, or (second) the center of the two-year flood plain.
City means the City of Burnet, Texas.

City manager means the chief administrative officer of the city or his/her designated representative.
City council or council means the Burnet City Council.

City engineer means the city engineer for the city or his/her designated representative.

City limits means within the incorporated boundaries of the city.

City staff means the officers, employees and agents of the city assigned and designated from time to time
by the city manager and/or council, including but not limited to the city engineer, to review and/or comment

and report on development plans.

City technical construction standards and specifications (TCSS) means a library of city approved drawings and technical data representing typical

drainage, transportation, erosion and sedimentation control, and utility appurtenances to be constructed for city acceptance.

Collector street means a street whose function is to collect and distribute traffic between major
thoroughfares and minor streets, is not necessarily a continuous routing for long distances, has intersections
at grades and provides direct access to abutting property and includes those streets designated as secondary
streets.

Commission means the planning and zoning commission of the city, or the city council if a planning and
zoning commission is not operational.

Construction plans means the maps, drawings, plans and specifications indicating the proposed location
and design of improvements to be installed as part of a development.

Contiguous means adjacent property whose property lines are shared or are separated by only a street,
alley, easement or right-of- way.

Corner lot means a lot located at the intersection of and abutting on two or more streets.
County means Burnet County, Texas.
County appraisal district means the county appraisal district.

Critical root zone means a circular area around a significant protected tree, egua

thecircularareatlocatedatthetrunk which is 10 ft. from the trunk or one-half of the drip line, whichever is more.

Crossfall means the transverse slope as related to a given longitudinal slope and measured by the rise to run



ratio.

Crosswalk means a strip of land dedicated for public use and which is reserved across a lot or block for the
purpose of providing pedestrian access to adjacent areas.

Cul-de-sac means a minor street having one end open to vehicular traffic and having one closed end
terminated by a permanent turnaround.

Dedication means the grant of an interest in property for public purpose.

Design storm means a probable rainfall event the frequency of which is specified in periods of years and
which is used to design drainage facilities and determine flood elevations.

Developer means the legal owner of land to be improved and/or subdivided or his/her authorized

representative.

Developed area means that portion of a lot, easement, or parcel upon which a building, structure,
pavement or other improvements have been placed.

Development means a subdivision of land as defined herein or the construction or placement of any
buildings, utilities, access, roads or other structures, excavation, mining, dredging, grading, filling, clearing
or removing vegetation, and the deposit of refuse, waste or fill. Lawn and yard care, including mowing of
tall weeds and grass, gardening, tree care and maintenance, removal of trees or other vegetation damaged by
natural forces, and ranching and farming shall not constitute development. Utility, drainage, and street
repair, and any construction maintenance and installation which does not require land disturbance or result
in additional impervious cover shall also not constitute development.

Development plan means a scaled drawing representing an area of land to be improved and/or developed and
indicating the legal boundary of said property and the nature and extent of all existing and proposed

improvements to said project.

Diseased tree means a tree weakened by disease, infestation, decay, age or fire, or any other form of damage, to an extent where there is a risk the tree

may die in five years, split, fall, threaten the viability of healthy trees, or pose a hazard to any adjoining property; and the problem cannot be fixed or healed

through normal horticultural practices.

Double frontage lot means a lot which runs through a block from street to street and which abuts two or more

streets.
Drainageway. See waterway.
Drainfield means private sewage facility, disposal area, trench or bed utilized for final wastewater disposal.

Drip line means an imaginary line around a tree that corresponds with the outermost edge of the canopy of said tree if projected directly downward, or,

if the tree is damaged or deformed, a circular area with a radius equal to two feet per inch of caliper. When depicted on a survey or site plan, the drip line of

a tree will generally appear as an irregularly shaped circle that follows the contour of the branches of the tree.

Drive approach means a paved surface connecting the street to a front lot line.

Driveway means the surface connecting a drive approach with a parking space, parking lot, loading dock or
garage.

Dwelling unit means a residential unit designed to accommodate one household.

Easement means a grant by the property owner of the use of a strip of land for stated purposes.



Environment means the aggregate of social and physical conditions that influence the life of the individual

and/or community.

Escrow funds means a deposit of cash or other approved security with the local government or approved bank
or other financial institution in-lieu of a performance or maintenance bond.

Extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) means the unincorporated area, not a part of any other city, which in
contiguous to the corporate limits of the city, the outer limits of which are measured from the extremities of
the corporate limits of the city outward for such distances as may be stipulated in the state local government
code as may be amended from time to time in accordance with the total population of the incorporated city,
or as expanded pursuant to state law and in which area, within the terms of the state law, the city may enjoin
the violation of its subdivision ordinance.

Filing date means, with respect to plats and plans, the date the requested action is submitted to the city for

consideration.

Final plat means a map of a land subdivision prepared in a form suitable for filing of record with
necessary affidavits, dedications and acceptances, and with complete bearings and dimensions of all lines
defining lots and blocks, streets, alleys, public areas and other dimensions of land.

Flood plain means the channel of a waterway and the adjacent land area subject to inundation during the
design storm. Floodplains are typically identified by the federal emergency management administration
(FEMA\) in their flood insurance rate maps (FIRM).

Floodway means channel of a waterway and the adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to
discharge the design storm without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation.

Front yard means a space extending the full width of the lot between any building set back line and the front
lot line, and measured perpendicular to the building at the closest point to the front lot line.

Frontage means that side of a lot, parcel or tract of land abutting a street right-of-way and ordinarily

regarded as the frontal orientation of the lot.
Governing body means the city council.

Grade means the slope of a road, street, other public way or utility line specified in terms of percent; the
topographic relief of a parcel of land; the average elevation at ground level of the buildable area of a lot or
parcel of land.

Grading means any stripping, cutting, filling or stockpiling of earth or land, including the land in its cut or

filled condition.

Ground cover means low growing plants planted in such a manner as to form a continuous cover over the
ground, such as liriope, low growing varieties of honeysuckle, confederate jasmine, English ivy or others.

Healthy tree means a tree showing good structural integrity, free of serious diseases, and maintaining normal

appearance appropriate to the species including size of tree and leaves, normal coloration, and displaying normal

vigor and growth characteristics of the species.

Heritage tree means a healthy, native tree having a trunk of twenty-four (24) inches or greater in caliper at




four feet six inches above the ground.

Impervious cover means roads, parking areas, buildings, swimming pools, rooftop landscapes and other
construction limiting the absorption of water by covering the natural land surface; this shall include, but not be
limited to, all streets and pavement within the development.

Improvements means any street, alley, roadway, barricade, sidewalk, bikeway, pedestrian way, water line
system, wastewater system, storm drainage network, public park land, landscaping, or other facility or
portion thereof for which the local government may ultimately assume responsibility for maintenance and
operation or which may affect an improvement for which local government responsibility is established.

Individual on-site wastewater system or private sewage facility means all systems and methods used for
the disposal of sewage, other than organized sewage disposal systems. Private sewage facilities are usually
composed of three units: the generating unit (the residence, institution, etc.), treatment unit, and the disposal
unit (the drainfield that may be an absorption trench or bed, or an evapo- transpiration bed). A private
sewage facility includes a septic tank, seepage tile sewage disposal system or any other on-lot sewage
treatment device approved and installed in accordance with all local, state and federal laws and regulations.

Interior lot means a lot other than a corner lot and, bounded by a street on only one side.

Invasive tree means a tree that threatens native trees by competing for resources and habitat, including, but not limited to Juniper, Chinese Tallow,

Hackberry, and Chinaberry.

Large lot subdivision means a subdivision development designed with lots a minimum of one-acre or more in
size.

L.C.R.A. is a term used to identify and refer to the Lower Colorado River Authority.
Landscape development means trees, shrubs, ground cover, vines or grass installed in planting areas.

Legal lot means either a lot recorded in the official county records pursuant to and in compliance with the
subdivision regulations in effect at the time of its creation, or a tract of land having existed in its present
configuration prior to October 1, 1927.

Legally platted lot a lot which is part of a subdivision approved by the city and recorded in the official county

records.

Letter of credit means a letter from a bank or other reputable creditor acceptable to the city that
guarantees to the city that upon failure of the developer to fulfill any improvement requirements that at the
city's request, funds will be provided to the city to complete the specified improvements.

Living unit equivalent (L.U.E.) means a unit of measure which represents the quantity of water utilized
and wastewater generated on an average annual daily basis from a single-family, detached residence of
average size and occupancy which is the standardized measure used for service units as more particularly

described in the capital improvements plan ordinance.
Local health district means the county health district.

Lot means a subdivision of a block or other parcel intended as a unit for transfer of ownership, or for
development, or for occupancy and/or use.

Marginal access street means a street whose function is to provide a buffer between a subdivision



fronting on an arterial street or highway. The purpose of these streets is to permit better through traffic
movement along arterials while preserving low density residential living environments.

Master plan means the overall development plan for the community which has been officially adopted
to provide long-range development policies including all specified individual elements thereof among
which are the plans for land intensities; land subdivision; circulation; and community facilities, utilities and
services; and, if none, professional planning and engineering practices.

Minor arterial street means a street whose prime function is to provide access to abutting residential
property within neighborhoods, with all intersections or grade, and not of continuous routing for any great
distances to discourage through traffic.

Minor plat means any plat consisting of four or fewer lots fronting on an existing street that are
adequately served by streets, utilities, drainage facilities (if necessary), and easements or rights-of-way; and
does not require the creation of any new street(s) or the extension of municipal facilities or vacating plat. An
amended plat shall be considered a minor plat.

Minor street means a local street designed primarily for access to abutting residential properties. A minor

street does not include a street designed or required to be designed for through traffic.

Monarch tree means a tree having a trunk of forty-eight (48) inches or greater in caliper at four feet six inches above the ground, or any identified Indian

marker tree.

Native species means a tree, shrub, vine, or ground cover of a species native or well adapted to Central Texas, and which is not an invasive tree species.

A list of preferred native plant species can be found in Article IX of this Chapter.

Natural channel means the topography of a waterway prior to construction, installation of improvements or

any regrading.

Natural drainage means a stormwater runoff conveyance system not altered by development.

Natural state means substantially the same conditions of the land which existed prior to its development,
including but not limited to, the same type, quality, quantity and distribution of soils, ground cover,
vegetation and topographic features.

Neighborhood means the area of the city characterized by residential land uses which is bounded by
physical (such as river, major street, back of access) and/or political features (such as voting districts,
subdivision boundaries).

Neighborhood park means a privately owned parcel of land, within a subdivision, dedicated solely for

recreational uses and maintained by the residents of said subdivision.

Nuisance tree means a tree that may threaten the viability of native plant species and the integrity of the ecosystem, and shall include invasive trees and

diseased trees, as defined herein.

Official county records means the Official Public Records of Burnet County, Texas (O.P.R.B.C.T.).
Off-site improvements means any required improvement which lies outside of the property being developed.
100- year flood plain means that flood which has a probability of occurring once in a 100-year period or a one-percent chance in any

given year.

Overland drainage means stormwater runoff which is not confined by any natural or man-made channel

such as a creek, drainage ditch, storm sewer, or the like.



Parent tract means tract or lot as described by deed or plat, which includes one or more lots that are being

subdivided.

Park fund means a special fund established by the city to retain monies paid by developers in accordance
with the payment in-lieu of park land dedication provisions of these regulations and to be used for the
purchase of park land or improvements in the vicinity of the subdivided property for which funds have been
collected.

Planned unit development (PUD) means a land development project that promotes the planning of an
individual tract of land to allow for a single use, such as residential, or for a harmonious combination of

uses, such as a mixture of residential and commercial.
Planning and zoning commission means the city planning and zoning commission.

Planting area means any area designed for landscape planting having a minimum of ten square feet of actual
plantable area and a minimum inside dimension on any side of 18 inches.

Playscape means any structure permanently anchored to the ground that is designed for recreational
purposes. Sports courts such as basketball or tennis courts are not considered playscapes.

Preliminary plat means a map of a proposed land subdivision showing the character and proposed layout
of the entire property being developed in sufficient detail to indicate the suitability of the proposed
subdivision of land.

Primary structure means a structure in which the principal use of the lot is conducted. For example, for

single family residential lots, the house is the primary structure.

Protected tree means a healthy, native tree having a trunk twelve (12) inches or greater in caliper at four feet six inches above the ground. Protected

trees shall include heritage trees and monarch trees, but shall not include nuisance trees, as defined herein.

Protective fencing means chain link fencing, orange vinyl construction fencing or other fencing at least four feet high and supported at a maximum of

ten-foot intervals by approved methods sufficient to keep the fence upright and in place. The fencing shall be of a highly visible material.

Public means, with respect to land and interests in land within the city limits, the city; and, with respect to

land and interests in land within the ETJ limits, the general public.

Public use or purpose means places of non-commercial public assembly or administrative functions where
the primary activity is contained within a building(s), including but not limited to churches, schools and
government buildings.

Rear yard means a space extending across the full width of the lot between the principal building and the

rear lot line, and measured perpendicular to the building to the closest point of the rear lot line.
Regulatory 100-year floodplain means the 100-year floodplain as defined by the federal emergency management act (FEMA).

Regulatory floodway means that area designated by FEMA or subsequent federal, state, or local authority

administering a flood insurance program as being within the floodway of a 100-year flood storm.

Replacement trees means new landscape trees approved-by-the—city-counci-to-be-planted by the developer to replace significant trees removed
during the development of property. A list of approved preferred replacement trees can be ebtained-attheofficeofthe—<ity found in Article IX of this
Chapter.

Required yard means the open space between a lot line and the buildable area within which no structure shall

be located except as provided for herein.



Reserve strip means a narrow strip of property usually separating a parcel of land from a roadway or
utility line easement, or other parcel of land, that is characterized by limited depth which will not support
development and which is intended to prevent access to the roadway or utility easement from adjacent
property and which are prohibited by these regulations unless their control is given to the city.

Reverse frontage lot means a double frontage lot which is to be developed with the rear yard abutting a major
street and with the primary means of ingress and egress provided on a minor street.

Right-of-way means a strip of land occupied or intended to be occupied by street, crosswalk, railroad,
road, electric transmission line, or oil or gas pipe line, water main, sanitary or storm sewer main, or for other
similar purpose or use.

Same ownership means ownership by the same person, corporation, firm, entity, partnership, or
unincorporated association; or ownership by different corporations, firms, partnerships, entities, or
unincorporated associations in which a stock holder, partner, or associate or a member of his/her/her family
owns an interest in each corporation, firm, partnership, entity, or unincorporated association.

Secondary (accessory) structure means any structure that is subordinate and incidental to the primary
structure; and is subordinate in area, extent and purpose to the primary structure; and contributes to the
comfort, convenience or necessity of the occupants, business or industry in the primary structure, and is
located on the same lot as the primary structure.

Setback or building line means a line or lines designating the interior limit of the area of a lot between
said line and the corresponding line within which area structures may not be erected. The building lines
generally provide the boundaries of the buildable area of any given lot.

Shrub means any self-supporting woody evergreen and/or deciduous species.

Side yard means a space extending from the front yard to the rear yard between the setback line and the side

lot line measured perpendicular from the side lot line to the closest point of the setback line.

Slope means the vertical change in grade divided by the horizontal distance over which that vertical
change occurred. The slope is usually given as a percentage.

Spring means a point or zone of natural groundwater discharge having measurable flow and/or a pool,
however small, and characterized by the presence of a plant community adapted to the moist conditions of

the site.
State health department means the Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS).

Street means any public or private right-of-way which affords the primary means of vehicular access to

abutting property.

Street line means that line limiting the right-of-way of the street and being identical with the property line
of persons owning property fronting on the streets.

Street side yard means the side yard of a corner lot abutting the street right-of-way.

Street yard means a space extending across the length and/or width of a lot between the street right-of-



way and the closest faces of the buildings on the lot.
Structure means anything constructed or erected on the ground or which is attached to something located on
the ground.
Structures include without limitation; buildings, telecommunications towers, sheds, parking lots that are the
primary use of a parcel and permanent signs. Sidewalks and paving shall not be considered structures unless
located within a public utility or drainage easement.
Structural integrity means the ability of a structure to maintain stability against normal forces experienced by
said structure.
Subdivision means the division or redivision of land into two or more lots, tracts, sites or parcels for the
purpose of development, laying out any addition to the city, or for laying out any subdivision or building
lots, or any lot, street, alley, access easement, public utility easement, park or other portion intended for use
by the public, or for the use of any owner, purchaser, renter, occupant, person or entity.

Traffic impact analysis (TIA) means a study of the impacts of a development on the city's transportation system.

Tree means any self-supporting woody plant species which normally grows to an overall minimum height of
15 feet.

Tree removal and mitigation plan means a plan that specifies which protected trees on the site will be removed, and how the required mitigation

will be achieved.
Tree survey means a scaled drawing accurately showing the location, caliper, drip line,ané critical root zone, and species of significant protected

trees in relation to the property boundaries, and prepared by a licensed arborist, surveyor, engineer, or landscape architect.

Tree topping means the significant removal or cutting back of whole tops of trees or large branches from the tops of trees, leaving only stubs or lateral

branches, which results in irreparable damage to, or loss of, the tree.

Urbanization means the process of constructing public improvements required to support suburban or urban

land use.

Variance means a grant of relief to a person from the requirements of this chapter when specific enforcement
would result in unnecessary hardship. A variance, therefore, permits construction or development in a manner
otherwise prohibited by this chapter.

Vines means any of a group of woody or herbaceous plants which may cling by twining, by means of aerial
rootlets or by means of tendrils, or which may simply sprawl over the ground or other plants.

Watershed means area from which stormwater drains into a given basin, river or creek.

Waterway means any natural or man-made channel conducting storm water from a two-year storm event
at a depth of eight inches or more and at a rate of 15 cubic feet per second or more. Street pavement shall in
no instance be considered a waterway.

Working days means Monday through Friday exclusive of city recognized holidays.

Yard means an open space that lies between the principal or accessory building or buildings and the nearest

lot line.

Yard depth means the shortest distance between a lot line and a yard line.

Yard line means a line drawn parallel to a lot line at a distance equal to the depth of

the required yard.






Exhibit “B”
Amendments to
Secs. 98-22 and 98-23



Sec. 98-22.
(@)

(b)

©

(d)

- Preliminary plat.

Purpose. The preliminary plat provides detailed graphic information and associated text indicating property boundaries,
easements, land use, streets, utilities, drainage, and other information required to evaluate proposed subdivisions of land.
A preliminary plat shall be required for any subdivision of land, except as otherwise provided for in this chapter.

Format. One Mylar copy of the preliminary plat shall be provided and drawn on 18-inch by 24-inch sheet(s) at a scale of
one-inch equals 100 feet with all dimensions labeled accurately to the nearest foot. When more than one sheet is

necessary to accommodate the entire area, an index sheet showing the entire subdivision at a scale of one-inch equals
400 feet shall be attached to the plat.

Representation of plat. The developer and/or his agent is encouraged to attend the public hearings during which the
subdivision application is to be considered. The planning and zoning commission may deny the request if the application is

not represented by the developer and/or his agent and city staff does not have the information required to satisfy questions
raised by commission members.

Content. The preliminary plat shall include all of the land intended to be developed and any off-site improvements required to
accommodate the project. If the subdivision is to be developed in phases, each phase shall be identified on the preliminary
plat. The preliminary plat application shall contain erhave-attached-therete_the following:

(1) General information.

a. Name, address and phone numbers of the developer, record owner, and authorized agents (engineer, land
planner, etc.).

b. The proposed name of the subdivision, which shall not have the same spelling or be pronounced similarly to the
name of any other subdivision located within the city or within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the city, provided
however that use of the same base names for different sections or phases is required when the units are
contiguous with their namesakes and individually identified by a section or phase number.

c. The date, scale, and north indicator.

d. A location map showing the relation of the subdivision to streets and other prominent features in all directions f
one-mile using a scale of one-inch equals 2,000 feet or as approved by city staff. The latest edition of the USGS 7.
map is recommended.

e. The owner's name, deed or plat reference and property lines of property within 300 feet of the subdivision
boundaries as determined by the most recent tax rolls.

f. Certification and signature blocks as required by the city and the county. The city planning director will sign
the preliminary plat showing that the plat is the document approved by the city council.

The total acreage of the property to be subdivided and the subtotals by land use.
A closure run sheet demonstrating an adjusted mathematical closure is in compliance with "The Texas Board of
Professional Land Surveying General Rules of Practice."”

i. Developers that elect to phase in sections of a subdivision project shall provide a phasing plan for the entire
land area encompassed within the subdivision for review and approval in conjunction with the plat. Subsequent
changes to the phasing may be approved by the director of planning and development, after review by the city
engineer, without being considered by the planning and zoning commission or city council.

(2) Existing conditions.

a. The existing property lines, including bearings and distances, of the land being subdivided. Property lines shall be
drawn sufficiently wide to provide easy identification.

b. The location of existing water courses, dry creek beds, wells, sinkholes and other similar topographic features.

c. A tree survey shall be prepared showing the location, caliper, critical root zone, drip line, and species of

all Signifieant-protected trees; within the boundaries of the subdivision and-ef that are eight-twelve inches in

caliper and-or larger;. Protected trees shall be shown accurately to the nearest one-foot. Eritical-roetzonres-of

d. Centerline of water courses, creeks, existing drainage structures and other pertinent data shall be shown.



Areas subject to flooding shall be shown, delineating the regulatory 100-year floodplain, annotating the base
flood elevation (BFE), and any other floodplains identified in the FIRM maps as developed by FEMA. If neither
encroaches upon the subject property, a note to that effect must be placed upon the drawing.

Topographic data indicating two-foot contour intervals for slopes less than ten percent and five-foot contour
intervals for slopes exceeding ten percent. The contoured area shall extend outward from the property
boundary for a distance equal to 25 percent of the distance across the tract, but not fewer than 50 feet nor
more than 200 feet.

The locations, sizes and descriptions of all existing utilities, including but not limited to wastewater lines, lift
stations, wastewater and storm sewer manholes, water lines, water storage tanks, and wells within the
subdivision, and/or adjacent thereto.

The location, dimensions, names and descriptions of all existing or recorded streets, alleys, reservations,
railroads, easements or other public rights-of-way within the subdivision, intersecting or contiguous with its

boundaries or forming such boundaries, as determined from existing deed and plat records.
The existing right-of-way width of any boundary street to the proposed subdivision shall
also be shown.

The location of city limit lines and/or outer border of the city's extra-territorial jurisdiction, as depicted on the

city's most recent base map, if either traverses the subdivision or is contiguous to the subdivision boundary.

(3) Improvements.

a.

The location, size and description of any proposed drainage appurtenances, including storm sewers, detention
ponds and other drainage structures proposed to be constructed on and off the site, and designed in accordance
with the requirements of this and other applicable ordinance/law.

The developer shall include a copy of the complete application for flood plain map amendment or revision, as
required by the federal emergency management agency (FEMA), if applicable.

The location, dimensions, names and descriptions of all proposed streets, alleys, parks, open spaces, blocks,

lots, reservations, easements and rights-of-way; and areas within the subdivision
indicating the connection to or continuation of other improvements in adjacent

subdivisions.

If applicable, the location of building setback lines indicated by dashed lines on the plat.
Numbers to identify each lot and each block.
The lengths of each proposed property line of all lots. The area of each lot shall be provided.

A tree removal and mitigation plan shall be prepared showing the caliper, species, critical root zone, and

dripline of all Sigrificart-protected trees to remain, and those to be removed during construction. shewirg-the

provided on-site, the tree removal and mitigation plan shall—er-a-separate-sheet; also indicate where and how

the mitigation requirements will be met.

The developer shall be responsible for providing replacement trees as specified in Article IX of this

chapter.

The developer shall be responsible for providing replacement trees as shown in the application submittal

documents based on a replacement ratio (inches removed to inches planted) of:
1. One to two for significant trees 18 inches in caliper and larger, and

2. One to one for significant trees between eight and 18 [inches] in caliper.



3. Replacement trees shall not be required for the removal of trees smaller than eight inches in caliper. The
removal of significant trees larger than 18 inches in caliper shall require commission approval.
j. Developer shall contact the postmaster for the U.S. Postal Service in the city to discuss requirements for the

delivery of mail to residents of the subdivision and any other requirements they may have.

(4) Support documents.

®)

a. A drainage study, consisting of a drainage area map with contours, location and capacities of existing and
proposed drainage features, and calculations in accordance with this chapter and good engineering practices,

shall be provided to ensure the property will be developed in accordance with city drainage policies and
L.C.R.A. regulatory requirements.

b. Utility demand data, consistent with the proposed uses indicated on the preliminary plat, to determine the
adequacy and the consistency of proposed utility improvements.

c. If a subdivision is located in an area served by any utility other than the city, the developer shall furnish a letter
from such utility certifying their approval of the location of the utility easements shown on the plat and indicating
the utility's intent to serve the property.

Accuracy of data. The applicant shall be responsible for verifying the accuracy of all data submitted, including that

which might be obtained from the city, excepting that data which can only be obtained from the city.

(e) Procedure. A preliminary plat for any proposed subdivision of land shall be submitted to the city planning department for

commission review and subsequent city council approval.

)

&)

®

“

®)

Legible prints, as indicated on the application form, shall be submitted at least 30 days prior to the regular meeting of
the commission at which the preliminary plat is to be heard, along with the following:

a. Completed application forms and the payment of all applicable fees.

b. A summary letter stating briefly the type of street surfacing, drainage, electrical, water and wastewater

facilities proposed.
c. A petition requesting annexation, if applicable.
d. A letter requesting any variances from the provisions of this chapter with the payment of any administrative
fees.

e. Any attendant documents needed to supplement the information provided on the preliminary plat.
City staff shall review all preliminary plat submittals for administrative completeness at the time of application. If, in
the judgment of city staff, the preliminary plat submittal substantially fails to meet the minimal informational
requirements as outlined above, it will not be accepted for review and the preliminary plat shall be deemed rejected.
The developer shall have up to 60 days from the date the preliminary plat is deemed denied to remedy all deficiencies
or the preliminary plat shall be rejected for filing and new filing fees will be required for subsequent submittals.
Prior to the commission meeting at which the preliminary plat is presented, city staff shall review the plat for consisted
ordinances, codes, policies and plans.
After the preliminary plat is determined to be administratively complete, city staff shall prepare a report analyzing
the preliminary plat submittal, and recommending either the approval, disapproval or conditional approval of the
preliminary plat. This report shall be available at least five working days prior to the commission meeting.
If the developer chooses to withdraw the preliminary plat, in writing, by noon of the third working day preceding the
meeting, the submittal may appear on the next commission or council agenda, as applicable, after repayment of the
applicable fees if notices of public hearing are required or more than 60 days elapse between the voluntary withdrawal
of the preliminary plat and the commission or council agenda for which the preliminary plat was ready for

consideration.

() Notification.

€

&)

®

The developer may post signs along contiguous rights-of-way at each corner of he development and at intervals
that do not exceed 300 feet between said corners, giving notice of the public hearings for the project.

The city shall publish a public notice at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the city not fewer than 15
or more than 30 days prior to said public hearing.

The city shall mail public notification forms, postmarked no fewer than ten days prior to the appropriate commission



hearing, to the owners of all property, any part of which is located within 300 feet of the perimeter of the property
included within the preliminary plat.

(9) Approval. The commission, after holding public hearings in accordance with city ordinances and codes, shall made a
recommendation to the city council on the request for preliminary plat approval. The plat will be considered at the next
regularly scheduled public hearing of the city council, but not earlier than five working days after the commission's
hearing.

(1) The planning and zoning commission shall act within 30 days of the preliminary plat filing date to either recommend
approval, denial or modification to the application. Failure of the commission to act within the 30 days shall be
deemed an approval of the plat, except as otherwise agreed to by the developer. Plans that are disapproved as
submitted may be resubmitted without charge within 60 days of disapproval with additional fees being assessed. The
city council shall act within 30 days of the approval or inaction of the application by the commission. A plat is
considered approved by the city council unless it is disapproved within that period.

(2) Zoning of the tract, if applicable, that shall permit the uses proposed by the preliminary plat, or any zoning
amendment necessary to permit the proposed uses shall have been adopted prior to or concurrently with the
approval of the preliminary plat by the council.

(3) Approval of the preliminary plat shall not constitute approval of the final plat, but shall constitute a vesting of the
right to develop under city ordinances, codes and policies in effect on the date the requested permit is filed,
provided that neither the preliminary plat nor any subsequent plat or permit has been, or is, allowed to expire.

(4) The developer may elect to phase the subdivision project.

(5) The developer should be aware that specific approvals from other agencies may be required.

(6) Upon approval of the preliminary plat and all signatures having been executed, the developer shall furnish one
Mylar reproducible copy of the approved plat to be kept on file at the city as public record.

(h) Expiration.

(1) The approval of the preliminary plat or any subsequent plan or plat shall expire no earlier than the 5th anniversary of
the date the first permit application was filed for if no progress has been made towards completion of the project or;

a. An extension is granted by the commission in accordance with this chapter.

(2) If a preliminary plat expires, it may be reinstated only upon resubmittal of the unaltered, approved plat to the

commission and council and the approval by both bodies. All fees shall be repaid as if the plat were initially being

submitted.

() Extension. The developer may apply for an extension, in writing, prior to the 5th anniversary of the
first permit application fi stating reasons for needing the extension and demonstrating pursuit of
approvals for construction plans and/or final plat in accordance with this chapter. Upon receipt of
this written request, the commission may, at its discretion, grant up to a two- extension so long as
the preliminary plat remains consistent with the master plan and/or ordinances of the city.

@) Revision. If a revision to a previously approved preliminary plat is required, then no application for
final plat shall be accepted until the revised preliminary plat has been submitted and approved by
the commission. This signed, approved document shall be kept on file as public record in the
offices of the city.

(k) Responsibility. Notwithstanding the approval of any preliminary plat by the council commission
or the city engineer, the developer and the engineer that prepares and submits such plats shall be
and remain responsible for the adequacy of the design and nothing in this chapter shall be
deemed or construed to relieve or waive the responsibility of the developer or his/her engineer
for or with respect to any plat submitted.



( Unlawful to record. It shall be unlawful to cause to be recorded, any preliminary plat of land within

the city limits or extraterritorial jurisdiction of the city, with the county clerk and recorder’s office.



Sec. 98-23.

(@

(b)
©

- Construction plans.

Purpose. Construction plans, based upon the approved preliminary plat, and consisting of detailed specifications and
diagrams illustrating the location, design, and composition of all improvements identified in the preliminary plat phase and
required by this chapter and other applicable city ordinances, codes and policies, shall be submitted to the city for
approval. In addition, any project that necessitates the construction, reconstruction or modification of existing city
infrastructure shall also be submitted to the city for approval. The plans shall be kept by the city as a permanent record of
required improvements in order to:

(1) Provide better records that facilitate the operation and maintenance of, and any future modifications to existing city
infrastructure.

(2) Provide data for evaluation of materials, methods of construction and design.

(3) Upon completion of field construction, the developer/owner shall furnish the city planning department one
complete set of construction plans in an electronic format acceptable to the city that show all subdivision
infrastructure "as built". A paper copy of the "as built" may be submitted if prior approval of the city has been
obtained. All infrastructure shall be located in the state plain grid coordinates with surface elevations.

(4) No final plat shall be certified by the city, and no construction activities shall commence, until such time as
construction plans completely describing the on-site and off-site improvements required by this chapter and other
applicable city ordinances and codes, have been approved by the city engineer.

Format. Drawings shall be on 24-inch by 36-inch sheets at generally accepted horizontal and vertical engineering scales.

Content. Construction plans shall include all on and off-site improvements required to serve the proposed development as

indicated on the approved preliminary plat and in compliance with applicable ordinances, codes, standards and policies of

the city, and other applicable governmental entities. All construction plans shall be signed and scaled by a registered
professional engineer, licensed to practice in the state, and shall contain or have attached thereto:

(1) Cover sheet.

a. The appropriate project name, date, and the name, addresses and phone numbers of the developer, engineer
and surveyor, etc.

b. A location map showing the relation of the subdivision to streets and other prominent features in all directions for
a radius of at least one-mile using a scale of one-inch equals 2,000 feet. The latest edition of the USGS 7.5
minute quadrangle map is recommended.

(2) Street and roadway systems.

a. The horizontal layouts and alignments showing geometric data and other pertinent design details. The

horizontal layout shall also show the direction of storm water flow and the location of manholes, inlets and
special structures;

b. Vertical layouts and alignments showing existing and proposed center line, right and left right-of-way line
elevations along each proposed roadway.

c. Typical right-of-way cross sections showing pertinent design details and elevations as prescribed in the city
TCSS;

d. Typical paving sections showing right-of-way width, lane widths, median widths, shoulder widths, and
pavement recommendations;

e. Attendant documents containing any additional information required to evaluate the proposed roadway
improvements, including geotechnical information; and

(3) Drainage improvements.

a. Detailed design of all drainage facilities as indicated in the preliminary plat phase, including typical channel or
paving section, storm sewers and other storm water control facilities in compliance with the regulatory
requirements of the city drainage criteria manual.

b. Typical channel cross-sections, plan and profile drawings of every conduit/channel shall be shown.

c. Existing and proposed topographic conditions indicating two-foot contour intervals for slopes less than ten



)

percent, five-foot contour intervals for slopes exceeding ten percent and referenced to a United States
geological survey or coastal and geodetic survey bench mark or monument.

d. Attendant documents containing design computations in accordance with this chapter, and any additional
information required to evaluate the proposed drainage improvements.

e. A copy of the complete application for flood plain map amendment or revision, as required by the federal
emergency management agency (FEMA), if applicable.

Erosion and sedimentation controls.

a. Proposed fill or other structure elevating techniques, levees, channel modifications and detention facilities.

b. Existing and proposed topographic conditions with vertical intervals not greater than one-foot referenced to a
United States geological survey or coastal and geodetic survey bench mark or monument.

¢. The location, size, and character of all temporary and permanent erosion and sediment control facilities with
specifications detailing all on-site erosion control measures which will be established and maintained during all
periods of development and construction.

d. Contractor staging areas, vehicle access areas, temporary and permanent spoils storage areas.

e. A plan for restoration or the mitigation of erosion in all areas disturbed during construction.

(5) Water distribution systems.

a. The layout, size and specific location of the existing and proposed water mains, pump stations, storage tanks
and other related structures sufficient to serve the proposed land uses and development as identified in the
preliminary plat phase and in accordance with the city technical construction standards and specifications.

b. The existing and proposed location of fire hydrants, valves, motors and other fittings.

c. Design details showing the connection with the existing city water system.

d. The specific location and size of all water service connections for each individual lot.

e. Attendant documents containing any additional information required to evaluate the proposed water

distribution system.

(6) Wastewater collection systems.

™

®
©

(10)

(11)

a. The layout, size and specific location of the existing and proposed wastewater lines, manholes, lift stations, and
other related structures sufficient to serve the land uses and development as identified in the preliminary plat
phase, in accordance with all current city technical construction standards and specifications, and criteria for
construction of wastewater systems.

b. Plan and profile drawings for each line in public right-of-ways or public utility easements, showing existing ground
center line of pipe, pipe size and flow line elevation at all bends, drops, turns, and station numbers at 50-foot
intervals.

c. Design details for manholes and special structures. Flow line elevations shall be shown at every point where
the line enters or leaves the manholes.

d. Detailed design for lift stations, package plants or other special wastewater structures.

e. Attendant documents containing any additional information required to evaluate the proposed wastewater
system, and complete an application for Texas Commission on Environment Quality (TCEQ) approval.

Street lighting. The location, size, type and description of street lights according to the requirements of the city
TCSS.

Street signs. The location, size, type and description of street signs according to the requirements of the city TCSS.
Sidewalks. The location, size and type of sidewalks and pedestrian ramps according to the requirements of the city
TCSS.

Improvements for parks and other public and common areas. As identified and/or approved on the preliminary

plat.
Hocation——size-and-description Tree removal and mitigation plan. Fhelocation—size-and-deseription-ofalt

be prepared in accordance with the requirements outlined in Sec. 98-22.




(d)

O

®

(9)

(12) Protective fencing. During construction, protective fencing must be erected around all protected trees that will remain.

Such fencing shall be located outside of the critical root zone, and at least 10 ft. from the trunk or one-half of the drip

line, whichever is more. Parking, storage, or movement of equipment, vehicles, material, debris or fill inside the critical

root zone is prohibited.

(13) Landscaping and screening. The location, size and description of all landscaping and screening materials to be used in
common areas as required by this chapter.

(14) Design criteria. Final design criteria, reports, calculations, and all other related computations, if not previously
submitted with the preliminary plat.

(15) Cost estimates. A cost estimate of each required improvement, prepared, signed and sealed by a professional
engineer licensed to practice in the state.

Procedure. After all necessary approvals of the preliminary plat have been granted, construction plans, together with a

completed application form, administrative fees, and any other federal, state or local permits required prior to
construction (L.C.R.A. NPS permit, SWPPP, etc.) Shall be submitted to the city engineer for approval.

(1) Construction plans may be submitted for review and approval simultaneously with a final plat, provided however that
the final plat shall not be approved until the construction plans have been approved. If the construction plans and the
final plat are to be reviewed simultaneously, a complete application for construction plans and a complete application
for final plat must be submitted to the city simultaneously.

(2) City staff shall review all construction plan submittals for administrative completeness at the time of application. If in
the judgment of the city, the construction plan submittal substantially fails to meet the minimal informational
requirements as outlined above, it will not be accepted for review and the construction plan shall be deemed
rejected. The developer shall have up to 60 days from the date the construction plan is deemed denied to remedy all
deficiencies or the construction plan shall be rejected for filing and new filing fees will be required for subsequent
submittals.

(3) The city engineer shall review the construction plans to insure compliance with this chapter, and other applicable
city ordinances, codes, standards and specifications, and good engineering practices.

Approval. Within 30 days of the date on which all required information has been accepted for review, the city engineer
shall either approve or disapprove the construction plans.

(1) If the construction plans are disapproved, the city engineer shall notify the applicant, in writing, of disapproval and
indicate the requirements for bringing the construction plans into compliance.

(2) If construction plans are approved, then the city engineer shall sign and seal the cover sheet of the construction
plans, and return the signed copy to the planning department for city records.

(3) The developer should be aware that specific approvals from other agencies may be required.

(4) All improvements shown in the approved construction plans shall be constructed pursuant to and in compliance with
plans, except as otherwise specifically approved.

Revision. Where it becomes necessary, due to conflicts, omissions or other unforeseen circumstances, for corrections to be

made to construction plans for which approval has already been obtained, the city engineer shall have the authority to

approve such corrections when, in his/her opinion, such changes are warranted and also in conformance with city
requirements. Approval of such changes agreed to between the developer and city engineer shall be noted by initialing and
dating by both parties on the two original signed copies of the construction plans. significant changes, as determined by the
city engineer, shall require the submittal of a change sheet that depicts the changes to be submitted to the city engineer for
review and approval.

Responsibility. Notwithstanding the approval of any construction plans by the council, commission or the city engineer, the

developer and the engineer that prepares and submits such plans and specifications shall be and remain responsible for the

adequacy of the design of all such improvements; and nothing in this chapter shall be deemed or construed to relieve or
waive the responsibility of the developer or his/her engineer for or with respect to any design, plans and specifications

submitted.






Exhibit “C”
Amendments Adopting
Chapter 98, Article IX

Chapter 98 — SUBDIVISIONS
ARTICLE IX. - TREE PRESERVATION, MITIGATION,
AND REMOVAL

Sec. 98-124. — General Provisions.




a) If there are protected trees on the site, a tree protection plan, and/or tree removal and mitigation plan shall be submitted for all

residential and non-residential site development or redevelopment.

b) A tree removal permit shall be required for the removal of any protected tree. Such permit shall be applicable to the site, and shall not

be required for individual trees. The fee for a tree removal permit shall be twenty-five dollars ($25.00).

c) The developer shall be responsible for providing replacement trees as shown in the application submittal documents based on a

replacement ratio (inches removed to inches planted) of:

iy
2)
3)
4)

5)

6)

One to one (1:1) for protected trees 12 inches in caliper and larger, but less than 24 inches in caliper, and

One to two (1:2) for heritage trees 24 inches in caliper and larger, but less than 36 inches in caliper.

One to four (1:4) for monarch trees 36 inches in caliper and larger.

Replacement trees shall not be required for the removal of trees smaller than 12 inches in caliper. The removal of heritage

trees or monarch trees shall require Planning and Zoning Commission approval.

Replacement trees shall be selected from the list of native canopy tree species found in Article IX of this Chapter, and shall

be at least 2 inches in caliper at the time of planting.

Replacement trees shall not be required for the removal of nuisance trees, as defined herein.

d) Exceptions.

1)

2)

Hazardous Trees. If a protected tree is determined to pose an imminent or immediate threat to persons or property, the

requirements of this section may be waived as deemed necessary by the City Manager or his or her designee.

Airport Hazard. Protected trees which constitute an Airport Hazard, as defined in Chapter 18, are exempt from the requirements

of this section.

Sight Triangles. |If a protected tree is interfering with the safe visibility at a sight triangle of an existing public street, as

determined by the City Manager or his or her designee, the tree may be removed without fulfilling the mitigation requirements

of this chapter.

Dead or Diseased Trees. If a protected tree is already dead, dying or fatally diseased prior to starting a project, the provisions
of the mitigation requirements will not apply. A certified letter from a licensed arborist shall be required prior to removal of a

dead or diseased tree.

Installation _and maintenance of public utilities and infrastructure. 1f the location of a protected tree interferes with the City's

ability to install, maintain, or remove underground or overhead utilities or infrastructure, the City shall not be subject to the

requirements of this Article. Nothing in this chapter shall prohibit the trimming, topping, or removal of trees as deemed

necessary by the City. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall make all reasonable efforts to preserve heritage and

monarch trees.

e) On-site mitigation. Removal of protected trees shall be mitigated on-site whenever feasible.

f)  Fee-in- lieu of mitigation. In cases where on-site mitigation is deemed infeasible, e.g., planting capacity has been reached on site and

no off-site location is available, a payment in lieu of providing replacement trees may be approved by the City Manager or his or her

designee. Such fee shall be used by the city to purchase and plant replacement trees in public parks or on other city-owned property.

Payment in lieu of replacement trees shall be calculated as follows:

i)
2)
3)

One hundred dollars ($100.00) per caliper inch of protected tree to be removed.

Two hundred dollars ($200.00) per caliper inch of heritage tree to be removed.

Four hundred dollars ($400.00) per caliper inch of monarch tree to be removed.

g) Prohibited activities.

&)
2)

3)
4)

It shall be unlawful for any person to remove any protected tree without first securing a tree removal permit.

It shall be unlawful for any person to damage a protected tree, such as through tree topping, over pruning or chemical

poisoning.
It shall be unlawful for a person to continue work or removal of trees after a stop work order has been issued.

It shall be unlawful for a person to engage in any hazardous activities which causes damage to the crown or trunk or disturbs

the critical root zone of a protected tree without the written approval of the City Manager or his or her designee.

h)  Unauthorized removal. Any person who intentionally, knowingly, accidentally, or negligently removes a protected tree in violation of

this section shall be required to:



1) Replant replacement trees at a caliper ratio of two to one (2:1) for protected trees, four to one (4:1) for heritage trees, and

eight to one (8:1) for monarch trees; or

2) In convicted of violating this section, a fine not to exceed two hundred dollars ($200.00) per caliper inch of protected tree

removed, four hundred dollars ($400.00) per caliper inch of heritage tree removed, and eight hundred dollars ($800.00) per

caliper inch of monarch tree removed shall be imposed by the municipal Court.

Chart 1—NATIVE PLANT SPECIES

CANOPY TREES

Pecan

Carya illinoensis

Deep tap root

Bur Oak and other White Oaks

Quercus macrocarpa. etc.

Nice branch character

Cedar Elm

Ulmus crassifolia

Disease resistant

Shumard Red Oak and other Red

Quercus Shumardi, etc.

Red fall color

Oaks

Live Oak Querus virginiana Very hardy evergreen

Post Oak Quercus stellata Disease and drought resistant
Lacey Oak Quercus glaucoides Small to medium tree that is drought

tolerant, pest resistant

Big Tooth Maple

Acer grandidentatum

Fall color

Texas Ash, Mountain Ash

Fraxinus texensis

Long lived, fast growing

Chinese Pistachio(e) Pistacia chenenesis Fall color
Gingko Gingo bildoa Yellow fall color
Catalpa Catalpa sp. Flowers, slightly messy

Western Soapberry

Sapindus drummondii

Showy winter fruit, yellow fall color

American Sycamore

Plantanus occidentalis

Stout trunk and large limbs

Mexican Sycamore

Platanus mexicana

Insect and disease resistant

Bald Cypress

Taxodium species distichum

Fernlike leaves, fall color

Montezuma Cypress

Taxodium species

Fernlike leaves, fall color

Texas Pistachio

Pistacia texensis

Evergreen in this area, new growth red




Escarpment Black Cherry

Prunus serotina var. eximia

Spring blooms and summer fruits, vivid

yellow fall foliage

ORNAMENTAL TREES

Texas persimmon

Diospyros texana

Smooth gray bark

Sweetgum

Liquidambar styraciflua

Tall tree, red bark

Possumhaw Holly

llex deciduas

Deciduous, red fruit in winter

Texas Redbud

Cercis Canadensis texana

Long flowering in spring

Desert Willow

Chilopsis linearis

Drought tolerant, summer blooms

Yaupon llex vomitoris Very hardy, red berries
Vitex Vitex Agnus-castus Native, purple or white flower
Crape Myrtle Lagerstroemia indica Some die back, flowers

Eve's Necklace

Sophora affinis

Fernlike foliage, winter fruit color

Japanese Black Pine

Pinus thunbergi

Great color, best of pines

Loquat

Eriobotrya japonica

Evergreen, fall fruit

Texas Mountain Laurel

Sophora secondiflora

Fragrant purple flower

Mexican Plum

Prunus Mexicana

White flowers

Mexican Buckeye

Ungnadia speciosa

Brilliant pink flowers in spring

Elderica Pine (Afgan)

Pinus clderica

30 — 80", suited to alkaline soils

SHRUBS

Hollies (most varieties)

Hex sp.

Durable, some have berries

Eleagnus

Eleagnus pungens

Large, gray, tolerates heat, drought

Dwarf Wax Myrtle

Myrica pulilla

Mass plantings, hedges

Evergreen Sumax

Rhus virens

Evergreen red fruit

Flame leaf Sumac

Rhus lanceolata

Brilliant red foliage

Florida Jasmine

Jasminum floridum

Spring yellow blooms




Indian Hawthorn (all varieties)

Raphiolepis indica

Spring flower

Red Yucca

Hesperaloe parviflora

Coral flower spikes

Viburnum (all varieties)

Viburnum sp.

Dark green, spring flowers

Nandina Domestica

Nandina domestica

Winter color, red berries

Moonbay Nandina

Nandina moonbay

Compact, winter color

Gulf stream Nandina

Nandina gulfstream

Winter color, fuller at base

Italian Jasmine

Jasminum humile

Flower small, bright yellow

Mexican Buckeye

Ungnadio speciosa

Hardy, spring pink flowers

Agarita Berberis trifliata Holly-like foliage, flowers, berries
Muhly Grass Muhlenbergia lindhemeri Looks like small pampas grass

Pampas Grass

Cordateria Selloana

Fall flower

GROUND COVERS
Holly Fern Cyrtomium falcatum Coarse texture, dark green
Rosemary Rosmarinus officinalis Coarse texture, dark green

Santolina (green and gray)

Santolina spp.

Will take extreme heat

Cherry Sage Salvia Greggii Nearly evergreen, long bloom season
Liriope Liriope muscari Hardy, blue flower

Mondo (monkey) Grass

Ophiopogon japonicas

Thin, dark leaves, hardy

Asian Jasmine

Trachelopermun asiaticum

Some die back

Trailing Vinca (periwinkle)

Vinca Major

Shade, flower

Ajuga (carpet bugle)

Ajuga reptans

Shade, part shade, purple flower

Star Jasmine

Trachaelopspermum jasminoides

Sun, white flower, can be vine

Cross Vines

Bigonia capreolata

Bi-color flower

Carolina Jessamine

Gelsemium sempervirens

Yellow flower




Coral Honeysuckle

Lonicera sempervirens

Red flower

Pyracantha

Pyracantha sp.

Thorns, flowers, berries

Lady Banksia Rose

Rose Banksiae

Yellow flower, needs support

Boston lvy Parthenocissus tricuspidate Climbing, bright red in fall
English Ivy Hedera helix Shade, self-climbing, also groundcover

Chart 2—NUISANCE PLANT SPECIES

NUISANCE TREES

Juniper (males)

Juniperus

Chinese Tallow

Sapium sebiferum

Hackberry Celtis laevigata
Chinaberry Melia azedarach

Bradford Pear

Pryrus calleryana

Silver Maple Acer saccharinum
Sycamore Platanus occidentalis

Honey Mesquite

Prosopis glandulosa




Exhibit “D”
Amendments to
Secs. 118-61 and 118-62



Chapter 118 -
ZONING

ARTICLE Ill. - SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUIREMENTS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS
Sec. 118-61. - Construction plans.

(@) Purpose and applicability. Construction plans provide detailed graphic information and associated text indicating property

boundaries, easements, land use, street access, utilities, drainage, off-street parking, lighting, signage, landscaping, vehicle

and pedestrian circulation, open spaces and general conformance with the master plan and ordinances of the city when

necessary in accordance with the city building codes. When required, construction plan approval by the city engineer shall

be required for any development or improvement of land subject to this chapter, and not otherwise required by the city's

subdivision ordinance. Construction plans will not be required for development of existing lots or short form subdivisions

which have adequate utilities and public access as determined by the city engineer.

(b) Format. Construction plans shall be drawn on 24" x 36" sheets at a generally accepted engineering scale, and sufficient to

thoroughly meet the informational requirements herein.

(c) Content. Construction plans shall include all of the land proposed to be developed or improved, and any offsite

improvements required to accommodate the project. Construction plans shall contain, or have attached thereto:

(1) A cover sheet, showing:

a.

Names, addresses and phone numbers as applicable of the record owner and developer, if any, and all

authorized agents including the architect, engineer, landscape architect and surveyor.

The proposed name of the project.

A location map showing the relation of the project to streets and other prominent features in all directions for a

radius of at least one mile using a scale of 1" = 2,000'. The latest edition of the USGS 7.5-minute quadrangle

map is recommended.

Certification, revision and signature blocks as required by the city.

The total acreage of the property to be developed.

Current zoning district as defined by this chapter.

An existing conditions plan, showing as follows:

1.
2.

10.

Boundary of existing zoning districts, if applicable.

The existing property lines, including bearings and distances, of the land being developed or improved.
Property lines shall be drawn sufficiently wide to provide easy identification.

The location of existing structures and improvements, if applicable.

The accurate location, caliper and critical root zone of significart-trees-S-inch-catiperand-arger; all protected
trees in relation to the property boundary and, if applicable, within the limits of the proposed off-site
improvements.

Centerline of water courses, creeks, existing drainage structures and other pertinent data shall be shown.
Lines delineating the regulatory 100-year floodplain, if applicable.

Topographic data indicating two-foot contour intervals. The contoured area shall extend outward from
the property boundary for a distance equal to 25 percent of the distance across the tract, but not fewer
than 50 feet nor more than 200 feet.

The locations, sizes and descriptions of all existing utilities, including but not limited to sewer lines, lift
stations, sewer and storm sewer manholes, water lines, water storage tanks, and wells within the
property, and/or adjacent thereto. Existing overhead and underground electric utilities shall also be
shown.

The location, dimensions, names and descriptions of all existing or recorded streets, alleys, reservations,
railroads, easements, building setbacks or other public rights-of-way within the property, intersecting or
contiguous with its boundaries or forming such boundaries, as determined from existing deed and plat
records. The existing right-of-way width of any boundary street to the property shall also be shown.

Location of city limit lines and/or outer border of the city's extraterritorial jurisdiction, as depicted on the



city's most recent base map, if either traverses or is contiguous to the property boundary.

h. An erosion and sedimentation control plan, showing as follows:

1.

4.
5.

Proposed fill or other structure elevating techniques, levees, channel modifications and detention

facilities.

Existing and proposed topographic conditions with vertical intervals not greater than two feet referenced to
a United States Geological Survey or Coastal and Geodetic Survey bench mark or monument.

The location, size, and character of all temporary and permanent erosion and sediment controls with
specifications detailing all onsite erosion control measures which will be established and maintained
during all periods of development and construction.

Contractor staging areas, vehicles access areas, temporary and permanent spoils storage areas.

A plan for restoration and for the mitigation of erosion in all areas disturbed during construction.

i. A site plan, showing all visible improvements to the land, including the following:

1.

3.
4.

The location, dimensions, square footage, height and intended use of existing and proposed buildings on
the site.

Location, number and dimensions of existing and proposed parking spaces, distinguishing between
standard, handicap and van handicap spaces and calculation of applicable minimum requirements in
accordance with this chapter.

The location, type and dimensions of proposed driveways, signs and traffic control devices.

Compliance with the city's transportation policies provided in the city's subdivision ordinance.

j. A grading and drainage plan, showing as follows:

k. A drainage area map delineating areas to be served by proposed drainage improvements.

1) Detailed design of all drainage facilities, including typical channel or paving
section, storm sewers, detention ponds and other stormwater control facilities.

2) Proposed in a public utility easement and/or public right-of-way.

3) Existing and proposed topographic conditions with vertical intervals not greater
than two feet referenced to a United States Geological Survey or Coastal and
Geodetic Survey bench mark or monument.

4) Attendant documents containing design computations and any additional
information required to evaluate the proposed drainage improvements.

5) Compliance with the city's drainage policies provided in the city's subdivision

ordinance.



I. A utility plan, showing as follows:

1. The layout, size and specific location of proposed water mains and other related structures and in
accordance with all current city standards, specifications and criteria for construction of water mains.

2. The location of proposed fire hydrants, valves, meters, pipe fittings and other appurtenances.

3. Design details showing the connection with the existing city water system.

4. The layout, size and specific location of the proposed wastewater lines, lift stations and other related
structures, and in accordance with all current city standards, specifications and criteria for construction of
wastewater systems.

5. Plan and profile drawings for each line in public right-of-way or public utility easements, showing existing
ground level elevation at center line of pipe, pipe size and flow line elevation at all bends, drops, turns, station
numbers at 50-foot intervals.

6. Detailed design for lift stations, special wastewater appurtenances, if applicable.

7. Utility demand data, and other attendant documents, to evaluate the adequacy of proposed utility
improvements, and the demand on existing city utilities.

8. Compliance with the city's utility policies provided in the city's subdivision ordinance.

m. A building plan, including floor, building, foundation, roof plans and elevations.
n. A landscape plan, showing as follows:

1. Dimensions, types of materials, size and spacing of proposed vegetative materials, planting details and
irrigation appurtenances in relation to proposed structures or other significant improvements.

2. The following maintenance note: The developer and subsequent owners of the landscaped property, or the
manager or agent of the owner, shall be responsible for the maintenance of all landscape areas. Said areas
shall be maintained so as to present a healthy, neat and orderly appearance at all times and shall be kept free
of refuse and debris. All planted areas shall be provided with a readily available water supply and watered as
necessary to ensure continuous healthy growth and development. Maintenance shall include the replacement
of all dead plant material if that material was used to meet the requirements of the subdivision regulations.

3. Compliance with the eity's-landscaping and screening requirements of this chapter. See-See—348-61-6fthis
chapter:

4. Compliance with all protected tree preservation and mitigation requirements, as outlined in Chapter 98 of

this codeArtiele+x.

0. Construction details, showing (when applicable) as follows:

1. Structural retaining walls and/or detention outlet structures.
Storm sewer manhole and covers, typical channel sections, inlets, safety end treatments and headwalls.
Wastewater manholes and covers, cleanouts, grease traps, pipe bedding and backfill.
Water valves, water meters, fire hydrants, thrust blocks, backflow prevention and concrete encasement.
Driveways, curb and gutter, sidewalks, curb ramps, pavement sections and pavement repair.

Silt fence, rock berms, stabilized construction entrance, and inlet protection.

N o ok~ Db

Traffic controls when working in public right-of-way.
8. Applicable city standard details and specifications.
(d) Procedure. Construction plans for the development or improvement of land in the city limits, not otherwise governed by the city's
subdivision ordinance, shall be submitted to the city for approval prior to the issuance of a building permit.
(1) Two complete sets of construction plans shall be submitted to city staff for review by the building official or the city
engineer at any time prior to the issuance of a building permit, along with the following:
a. Completed application forms and the payment of all applicable fees.
b. A letter requesting any variances from the provisions of this chapter.
c. Any attendant documents needed to supplement the information provided on the construction plans.
(2) City staff shall review all construction plan submittals for completeness at the time of application. If, in the
judgment of city staff, the construction plan submittal substantially fails to meet the minimal informational

requirements as outlined above, it will not be accepted for review.



(3) The building official or city engineer shall review the construction plans to insure compliance with this chapter, and other
applicable city ordinances, codes, standards and specifications, and good engineering practices.

(4) Construction plans may be rejected at any time subsequent to submittal and prior to final approval for failure to meet
the minimum informational requirements of this chapter.

(5) Applicable fees pursuant to city ordinance shall be paid, including, but not limited to, all professional fees, engineer and
attorney fees incurred by the city for or with respect to the review, processing and approval of the application for the
approval of the building permit.

(e) Approval. Within 30 days of the date on which all required information has been accepted for review, the building official or the
city engineer shall either approve or disapprove the construction plans. If the construction plans are disapproved, the building
official or the city engineer shall notify the applicant, in writing, of disapproval and indicate the requirements for bringing the
construction plans into compliance. If construction plans are approved, then the building official or the city engineer shall sign
the cover sheet of the construction plans, returning one signed copy to the applicant and retaining the other signed copy for
city records.

(1) Specific approvals required from other agencies shall be obtained by the owner.

(2) All improvements shown in the approved construction plans shall be constructed pursuant to and in compliance with
the approved plans, except as otherwise specifically approved.

(3) It shall be the right of the applicant seeking construction plan approval, to appeal a decision of the building official or

the city engineer to the commission and have a final decision rendered by the commission.
(M Revision. Where necessary, due to unforeseen circumstances, for corrections to be made to
construction plans for which approval has already been obtained, the building official or the city
engineer shall have the authority to approve such corrections when, in his/her opinion, such changes
are warranted and also in conformance with city requirements.
© Approval of such changes agreed to between the developer and building official or city engineer
shall be noted by initialing and dating by both parties on the two original signed copies of the
construction plans.
Responsibility. Notwithstanding the approval of any construction plans the building official or the
city engineer or the commission, the developer and the engineer that prepares and submits such
(M plans and specifications shall be and remain responsible for the adequacy of the design of all such
improvements; and nothing in this chapter shall be deemed or construed to relieve or waive the
0 responsibility of the developer and his/her engineer for or with respect to any design, plans and
specifications submitted.
Expiration. Unless a longer time shall be specifically established as a condition of approval,
construction plan approval shall expire 12 months following the date on which such approval
became effective, unless prior to the expiration, a building permit is issued and construction is
commenced and diligently pursued toward completion.
Extension. Construction plan approval may be extended if the developer submits a written request for
extension and continuance of the plan as approved by the city prior to expiration. Approval of any

such extension request shall be automatic one time only for a period of 12 months.



Sec. 118-62. - Landscaping and screening requirements.

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this section is, in conjunction with the other requirements of this chapter, to promote and support the

orderly, safe, attractive and healthful development of land located within the community, and to promote the general welfare

of the community by preserving and enhancing ecological, environmental and aesthetic qualities, through established

requirements for the installation and maintenance of landscaping elements and other means of site improvements in developed

properties. Landscape plans will not be required for existing lots or short form subdivisions that have adequate utilities and

public access as determined by the city engineer. The following are additional factors considered in establishing the

requirements of this section:

€y

&)

Paved surfaces, automobiles, buildings and other improvements produce increases in air temperatures, a problem
especially noticeable in this southern region, whereas plants have the opposite effect through transpiration and the
creation of shade. Likewise, impervious surfaces created by development generate greater water runoff causing problems
from contamination, erosion and flooding. Preserving and improving the natural environment and maintaining a working
ecological balance are of increasing concern. The fact that the use of landscape elements can contribute to the processes
of air purification, oxygen regeneration, water absorption, water purification, and noise, glare and heat abatement as well
as the preservation of the community's aesthetic qualities indicates that the use of landscape elements is of benefit to
the health, welfare and general wellbeing of the community and, therefore, it is proper that the use of such elements be
required.

The city experiences frequent droughts and periodic shortages of adequate water supply; therefore, it is the purpose of

this section to encourage the use of drought resistant vegetation that does not consume large quantities of water.

(b) Installation and plan. All landscape materials shall be installed according to American Association of Nurserymen (AAN)

standards. An approved landscape plan shall be required for all new development in any zoning district, save and except for A,

0S, R-1 and R-1E districts.

(c) Maintenance. The owner of the landscaped property shall be responsible for the maintenance of all landscape areas. Said

areas shall be maintained so as to present a healthy, neat and orderly appearance at all times and shall be kept free of refuse

and debris. All planted areas shall be provided with a readily available water supply and watered as necessary to ensure

continuous healthy growth and development. Maintenance shall include the replacement of all dead plant material if that

material was used to meet the requirements of this section.

(d) Planting criteria.

)

@

®

“
®
)

Trees. Trees shall be a minimum of two inches in caliper measured three feet above finished grade immediately after
planting. A list of reeemmended_preferred landscape trees may-be-ebtaired-frem-the—eity can be found in Chapter 98 of

this code. he-developerchoeosesto-substitute treeshetincluded-on-therecommended —thoesetreesshathavean

reguired-areund-the-trunks-efall-existing-and-propesed-trees: The planting of trees will not be required prior to final
approval or acceptance of the final subdivision plat.

Shrubs and ground cover. Shrubs, vines and ground cover planted pursuant to this section shall be good, healthy
nursery stock. Shrubs must be, at a minimum, a one-gallon container size.

Lawn grass. It is recommended that grass areas be planted with drought resistant species normally grown as permanent
lawns, such as Bermuda, Zoysia, or Buffalo. Grass areas may be sodded, plugged, sprigged or seeded except that solid
sod shall be used in areas subject to erosion. With the exception of lawns being sodded, each lawn area shall have
sediment fencing installed on the down slope side to prevent erosion. Where seed is utilized, it shall be raked in and
watered at sufficient intervals to ensure that it takes root and begins growing. Thinned areas shall be reseeded to ensure
complete coverage of the lawn.

Synthetic plants. Synthetic or artificial lawns or plants shall not be used in lieu of plant requirements in this section.

Architectural planters. The use of architectural planters may be permitted in fulfillment of landscape requirements.

Other. Any approved decorative aggregate or pervious brick pavers shall qualify for landscaping credit if contained in but no



credit shall be given for concrete or other impervious surfaces. Alternative types of landscaping, such as xerosc types of
landscaping designed to conserve water shall be reviewed by the planning and development service staff for compatibility
with the area immediately surrounding the subject property.

(e) Landscaping requirements. A minimum percentage of the total lot area shall be devoted to landscape development in

accordance with the following schedule.

Zoning or Use Percentage
(1) Multifamily, Open Space 20%

(2) Residential *Note

(3) Commercial uses 15%

(4) Industrial—Light and Heavy 10%

(5) Agricultural None

*Note. Minimum landscape requirements for each lot on which a single-family, dwelling, or a
manufactured home, is constructed or installed after the date of this chapter shall be a minimum of
two, two-inch trees and lawn grass from the front property line to the front two corners of the
structure. Residential structures on reverse frontage lots shall also be required to screen the rear of
the structure from the abutting highway, access road, or other public right-of-ways.

(f) Exceptions. Exceptions to these provisions may be granted by the commission and/or council to require a lesser amount of

landscaping if




@

(h)

0]

@

(®)

(1) The aesthetic, buffering and environmental intent of this chapter is met, and the reduction of the landscape area

results in the preservation of natural features having comparable value to the reduced landscape requirements, or
(2) The density of the ground proves to be substantially difficult as to create an undue hardship not found in the majority

of the city.
Placement. Landscaping shall be placed upon that portion of a tract or lot that is being developed. Fifty percent of the required
landscaped area and required plantings shall be installed between the front property lines and the building being constructed.
Undeveloped portions of a tract or lot shall not be considered landscaped, except as specifically approved by the commission.
Landscaping placed within public right-of-ways shall not be credited to the minimum landscape requirements by this section.
Credit. The building—official-and/er—eityengireer City Manager or his or her designee shall, with respect to the issuance of a

building permit or approval of a construction or site development plan, give a credit against the requirements of this section

for trees preserved on the site. In addition, any required fandseapirg trees shall count toward the mitigation requirement, as

outlined in Chapter 98. Provided that, in order to reward the preservation of sigrifieant-protected trees, a credit may be given

for such preservation only if no more than 50 percent of the critical root zone is disturbed or distressed with impervious

cover; and provided further that the remaining critical root zone must consist of at least 100 square feet.

Additional required plantings. For every 600 square feet of landscape area required by this section, two trees and four shrubs

shall be planted. To reduce the thermal impact of unshaded parking lots, additional trees shall be planted, if necessary, so that

no parking space is more than 50 feet away from the trunk of a tree, unless otherwise approved by the commission. This

subsection (1) shall not apply to any property included in any of the following zoning categories: A, and R-1.

Replacement of required trees. Upon the death or removal of a tree planted pursuant to the terms of this section, a replacement

tree of equal size and type shall be required to be planted. A smaller tree that will have a mature crown similar to the tree

removed may be substituted if the planting area or pervious cover provided for the larger tree in this section is retained.

Screening. The following requirements shall be in addition to the foregoing landscaping and planting requirements.

(1) All off-street parking, loading spaces and docks, outside storage areas, satellite dishes larger than 18 inches in diameter,
antennas, mechanical equipment, and the rear of structures on reverse frontage lots, must be screened from view from the
street or public right-of-ways.

(2) Approved screening techniques include privacy fences, evergreen vegetative screens, landscape berms, existing vegetation
or any combination thereof.

(3) Privacy fences.

a. All fences required by this subsection and along a common property boundary shall be six feet in height.

b. Fences over six feet in height shall be allowed for impeding access to hazardous facilities. including, but not limited
to, electrical substations, swimming pools and chemical or equipment storage yards, where the slope of a line drawn
perpendicular to the fence line averages 20 percent or more on either side of the fence over a distance no less than
15 feet, or where the fence forms a continuous perimeter around a subdivision and the design of said perimeter
fence is approved by the commission.

c. Fences less than or equal to three feet in height shall be allowed in front yards.

d. No fence or other structure more than 30 percent solid or more than three feet high shall be located within 25 feet
of the intersection of any rights-of-way.

e. All fences shall be constructed to maintain structural integrity against natural forces such as wind, rain and
temperature variations. The fence shall be constructed of stone, masonry or wood products or an approved alternate
material (such as composite decking material). Fence materials shall be approved by the planning and development
services staff.

f.  The finished side of all fences built to comply with these regulations shall face away from the screened object.

4)  Evergreen vegetative screens. Evergreen plant materials shall be shrubs, at least 30 inches in height and at a minimum
spacing of 48 inches at the time of installation. Shrubs may be used in combination with landscape trees to fulfill the
requirements of this section.

5) Landscape berms. Landscape berms may be used in combination with shrubs and trees to fulfill the screening requirements
of this section if the berm is at least three feet in height and has a maximum side slope of four feet of horizontal run for

every one foot in vertical rise.



6) MNative vegetation. Existing vegetation, demonstrating significant visual screening capabilities and as approved by the
commission may fulfill the requirements of this section. The landscape requirements must be met prior to new development

receiving a certificate of occupancy.



Meeting Date:

Agenda Item:

Background:

Information:

Development Services ITEM 4.2

Wallis Meshier

Director of Development Services
(512) 715-3215
wmeshier@cityofburnet.com

Agenda Item Brief
February 12, 2019

Discuss and consider action: Request for a variance to Code
of Ordinances, Chapter 98, Section 98-42 for the proposed
Preliminary Plat of Eagle’s Nest, Section 3, for the purpose
of exceeding the maximum length of a cul-de-sac: W.
Meshier

The proposed Eagle’s Nest Section 3 Preliminary Plat is a
single-family residential subdivision located on 17.45 acres
of property located on the east side of Eagle Ridge (Exhibit
A). The proposed subdivision will include thirteen (13)
residential lots ranging in size from 1.01 acres to 2.56 acres.

The proposed subdivision will gain access from Eagle Ridge
via the proposed Montgomery Cove. Montgomery Cove is a
proposed dead-end cul-de-sac with an approximate length of
800 feet. Per Sec. 98-42, the maximum length for a cul-de-
sac is 600 feet. Therefore, the proposed preliminary plat
requires approval of a subdivision variance as a condition of
approval.

The requested variance pertains to the requirements
outlined in Code of Ordinances Sec. 98-42(b)(8), which
states: “In general, cul-de-sac shall not exceed 600 feet in
length, and shall have a turnaround of not less than 96 feet
in diameter in residential areas, and not less than 100 feet
in diameter in commercial and industrial areas and be in
compliance with the city's adopted fire code.”

In addition, Sec. 98-42(b)(12) states that a cul-de-sac in a
large lot residential subdivision shall be greater than or
equal to 600 feet.

The City of Burnet Code of Ordinances Sec. 98-82 states the
following regarding variances to the subdivision standards:



“In granting approval of a request for variance, the
Commission and Council shall conclude that the variance is
not contrary to the public interest and, due to special
conditions, a literal enforcement of this chapter would result
in unnecessary hardship, and so that the variance observes
the spirit of this chapter and concludes that substantial
justice is done. The Commission and Council shall meet
these requirements by making findings that:

a. The public convenience and welfare will be substantially
served;

b. The appropriate use of surrounding property will not be
substantially or permanently impaired or diminished;

c. The applicant has not created the hardship from which
relief is sought;

d. The variance will not confer upon the applicant a
special right or privilege not commonly shared or available
to the owners of similar and surrounding property;

e. The hardship from which relief is sought is not solely of
an economic nature;

f. The variance is not contrary to the public interest;

g. Due to special conditions, the literal enforcement of this
chapter would result in an unnecessary hardship; and

h. In granting the variance the spirit of the ordinance is
observed and substantial justice is done.”

The public convenience and welfare will be
substantially served.

The subject property, which consists of 17.45 acres, has
only one means of ingress/egress from Eagle Ridge. Staff
is of the determination that a dead-end street is the only
viable means of developing the subject property. The
proposed 800-foot long cul-de-sac meets all requirements
of the fire code with regard to adequate fire apparatus
turn-around. Staff finds that the requested variance serves
the public interest by allowing the subject property to be
further subdivided into one-acre lots.



The appropriate use of surrounding property will not
be substantially or permanently impaired or
diminished.

The requested variance has no impact on the surrounding
properties.

The applicant has not created the hardship from which
relief is sought.

The need for the requested variance stems from the
unusual size and configuration of the subject parcel. The
subject tract is large enough to necessitate a cul-de-sac
which exceeds the maximum cul-de-sac length of 600 feet,
but not large enough to provide a second means of
ingress/egress. Staff is of the determination that the size
and configuration of the subject parcel constitutes a unique
hardship, which was not created by the applicant.

The variance will not confer upon the applicant a
special right or privilege not commonly shared or
available to the owners of similar and surrounding

property.

The requested variance does not confer upon the
applicant any special right or privilege. The variance
process is available to all developers.

The hardship from which relief is sought is not solely
of an economic nature.

Staff is of the determination that strict enforcement of the
maximum cul-de-sac length as required by Sec. 98-42
constitutes a hardship that is not solely economic in nature.
The hardship in this case arises from the fact that the size
of the subject property necessitates a cul-de-sac which
exceeds the maximum cul-de-sac length by 200 feet, but
which is not large enough to provide a second means of
ingress/egress.

The variance is not contrary to the public interest.
Approval of this variance request serves the public interest

by allowing the subject property to be further subdivided
into one-acre lots. The proposed 800-foot long



Fiscal Impact:

Recommendation:

cul-de-sac meets all requirements of the fire code with
regard to adequate fire apparatus turn-around, and is
therefore not contrary to the public interest.

Due to special conditions, the literal enforcement of
this chapter would result in an unnecessary hardship.

Strict adherence to the requirements of Sec. 98-42 would
require a shorter cul-de-sac with substantially fewer
residential lots. Staff is of the determination that literal
enforcement of this section results in an unnecessary
hardship.

In granting the variance the spirit of the ordinance is
observed and substantial justice is done.

Staff finds that the requested 800-foot long cul-de-sac,
which exceeds the maximum by 200 feet, meets the intent
of the ordinance.

The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously
recommended approval of the applicant’s request for a
variance to the maximum cul-de-sac length, as stated in
Sec. 98-42 of the Code of Ordinances.

Approval of the applicant’'s request for a variance to the
maximum cul-de-sac length, as stated in Sec. 98-42 of the
Code of Ordinances as presented.



EXHIBIT “A”
Location




Meeting Date:

Agenda Item:

Background:

Information:

Development Services ITEM 4.3

Walllis Meshier, CNU-A

Director of Development Services
(512)-715-3215
wmeshier@cityofburnet.com

Agenda Item Brief

February 12, 2019

Discuss and consider action: Eagle’s Nest Section 3
Preliminary Plat, a 13-lot single-family subdivision, which is
approximately 17.45 acres described as being a replat of lot
76R out of Eagle’s Nest Section 2, and further described as
being generally located on the east side of Eagle Ridge,
approximately 1,100 feet north of the intersection with
Buchanan Drive (State Hwy. 29): W. Meshier

The proposed Eagle’s Nest Section 3 Preliminary Plat is a
single-family residential subdivision located on 17.45 acres
of property located on the east side of Eagle Ridge (Exhibit
A). The proposed subdivision will include thirteen (13)
residential lots ranging in size from 1.01 acres to 2.56 acres.

The subdivision will gain access from Eagle Ridge via the
proposed Montgomery Cove. Montgomery Cove is a
proposed dead-end cul-de-sac with an approximate length of
800 feet. Per Sec. 98-42, the maximum length for a cul-de-
sac is 600 feet. Therefore, the proposed preliminary plat will
require approval of a subdivision variance (Item 5.1) as a
condition of approval.

The proposed Eagle’'s Nest Section 3 Preliminary Plat has
been reviewed for conformance with Chapter 98 of the City
of Burnet Code of Ordinances, and has been found to
comply with all requirements relating to form and content
with the exception of Sec. 98-42 as it pertains to the
maximum length of a cul-de-sac.

The preliminary drainage plan submitted in conjunction with
the plat has been reviewed by the City Engineer and was
found to be in compliance with applicable Code of Ordinance
requirements.



Recommendation:

A tree survey was submitted in accordance with Sec. 98-22,
which shows no protected trees located within the proposed
right-of-way. Conformance with the City’s tree preservation,
mitigation, and removal standards will be ensured during the
construction plan review phase.

A notice of public hearing, as required by Code of Ordinance
Sec. 98-22 and 98-25, was published in the Burnet Bulletin
on January 16, 2019. Written notices were mailed to the
owners of all eight (8) properties located within 200 feet of
the subject property. As of the date of this report, no written
responses have been received in support or opposition.

The Planning & Zoning Commission unanimously
recommended approval of the Eagle’s Nest Sec. 3
Preliminary Plat as proposed.

Recommend approval of the Eagle’'s Nest Sec. 3
Preliminary Plat as presented.



PROJECT DATA: | SHEET INDEX: <
SUBDIVISION PLAT NUMBER: o SHEET 1~ COVER SHEET 5
' SHEET 2 PRELIMINARY PLAT
| | SHEET 3 MASTER DRAINAGE
SUBMITTAL DATE: : _ SHEET 4 TREE SURVEY
| o | PROJECT ADDRESS: BURNET COUNTY >
. | - | Proveer soRss: :
SLCTION 3 | | | - | | ZONING: S R1 (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) s
: . ) . ' N
“ ] _ ) ' ' USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL _ &
CITY OF BURNET | | | | “ .
| | S - | . \ DEVELOPER:
H » | - |
Ls 1 _ 3 L - | | | |
| . Q. CRAWFORD PROPERTY DEVELOPERS, LLC,
| LEGAL DESCRIPTION: | | 405 N. WATER | |
- . . BURNET, TX 78611
. _ ) : _ pad
BEING A 17.45 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, SAME BEING A REPLAT OF LOT 76R OUT OF (512) 845-4183 o S
EAGLE'S NEST SUBDIVISION, SECTION 2, A PRIVATE SUBDMISION AS RECORDED IN | ‘ ‘ o
: ' : _ _ ok . X« a7 - - DOCUMENT NO. 201809631, OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF BURNET COUNTY, CIVIL ENGINEER & PERMIT CONSULTANT =
________ ; - R ' ‘ A | %Y & TEXAS, | | | . |
-~ = N Vo RSN : | | CUATRO CONSULTANTS, LTD.
3601 KYLE CROSSING, SUITE A.
KYLE, TEXAS 78640
(512) 312-5040
GENERAL NOTES: | (512) 312-5399 FAX
| | SURVEYOR |
1. STREETS AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE PUBLICLY DEDICATED, PAVED, TO BE MAINTAINED BY - ‘ ' 930"
) , : : CELCO SURVEYING, FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 10193975
EAGLES NEST HOME OWNER'S ASSOCIATION. | - GEORGE E. LUCAS, REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO. 4160
2. ACCORDING TO THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP, COMMUNITY PANEL NO: 48053C0O325F DATED 2205 STONECREST PATH o
MARCH 15, 2012. NO PORTION OF THIS TRACT IS WITHIN THE 100 YEAR REGULATORY FLOODPLAIN. | NEW BRAUNFELS, TEXAS 78130 - | | R
3. THIS SUBDIVISION IS WITHIN THE BURNET INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT BOUNDARY. | (512) 635-4857 | O 2
: _ . A
4. THE P.U.E. AND EASEMENTS ARE DESIGNATED ON PLAT: ' ' _ _ _ | _ Q T
5. THE FULLY DEVELOPED, GONCENTRATED STORM WATER RUNOFF FOR THE 100 YEAR STORM AND THE 100 o | M Kk
YEAR REGULATORY FLOODPLAIN SHALL BE CONTAINED WITH IN DRAINAGE EASEMENTS. | - | S | o - o
6. UTILTY PROVIDERS: | o }""‘"“"’lv ok
. . mel DB
WATER: CITY OF BURNET : ‘ . : AR5
WASTEWATER: ONSITE SEPTIC SYSTEM APPROVED BY LCRA - - . - | < el R
ELECTRICITY: PEDERNALES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE - - SE
TELEPHONE: FRONTIER . COMMUNICATIONS CO. ‘ - , _ EZ gj—u
7. THIS SUBDIVISION IS SERVICED BY BURNET COUNTY ESD NO. 2. . ' 'y LE{
- : ‘ - o
8. ALL LOTS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM DRIVEWAY CULVERT SIZE OF 18” DIA. OR .DESIGN 2,CMPA, PER O3
3 BURNET COUNTY STANDARDS UNLESS SHOWN OTHERWISE ON MASTER DRAINAGE PLAN. | - 4 i
el I 9. THERE ARE 847 LINEAR FEET OF NEW ROADS. o 3
AY 2 S - ' . | 5
2{? ***** “\_;! i S RN gy e v | 10. THERE ARE 1.04 ACRES OF NEW ROADS HEREBY DEDICATED TO AND MAINTAINED BY THE EAGLE’'S NEST 3 2
= A AT Y N T L HOME OWNER'S ASSOCIATION. | | . 350
4 S fp; . = e b o - il : . K/ A {1 \a A 8 7
2 LA @ SUBMITTED BY: A2
l Cgﬂvi_‘,_,.»‘ Post N}oun'taiﬁ'} '
. > Chmess .
ot 4
(HLE(B ) )
P R ey 7 a RE,(.) - _T’S. ' % m §
— t.\fF“RS,f':’—:/ ) - L 1 T T D ]
| | ‘ . . f‘ﬂ’ J'r #@%@V ‘,‘#Q’ > I'ﬂlu
‘ | _ . PSR _ m---:'-ﬁf-’.f E -
- LOCATION MAP | o o . _ | . $HUGO ELIZONDO JR.Z DSy
1"="1500 - - fwmgemanesesmannc sz g [+
, _ 1oh 69781 S50 323!@
. - - - ' . _ _ _ _ - | . | y | | " oo 7 NOm=
| R - - - | o ‘o e Py 2
. . : . . — A4 7 W m 0 0 o
- CUATRG CONSULTANYS, L1y, | o DATE: 3 1
3601 KYLE CROSSING, SUITE A/ ' ' mp.m
KYLE, TX 78640 | n o2
(512) 312-5040 LY S &
(512} 312-5399 FAX aa £
STREET INVENTORY . ]
PUBLIC/ | - STREET. . PAVEMENT 4 -
CLASSIFICATION | oo | NAME ROW. | "eocBoc | sipewalk | CLLENGTH \
MINOR PRIVATE [ MONTGOMERY COVE 50’ 23 | NA 847 LF
' o | TOTAL 847 LF
UTILITIES: | | APPROVED BY: -
, . | | N 2 o
- : : : : STATE OF TEXAS: : 0
WATER DEMAND DATA FLOW | | | OITY OF BURNET: QN
WATER WASTEWATER : \ \ | o, W
. _ _ THE ATTACHED PRELIMINARY PLAT OF "EAGLES NEST SUBDIVISION, SECTION 3 HAS BEEN SUBMITTED TO AND APPROVED BY THE Q @ f= N
AVERAGE DAY: 19.5 GPM _ _ CITY OF BURNET - OSSF — LCRA N ‘ CITY COUNCIL OF THE ‘CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, AT ITS MEETING ON THE DAY OF , 2018. THIS r e §
PEAK DAY, : - _ CONTACT: ALAN BURDELL CONTACT: MARBLE FALLS OFFICE : PRELIMINARY PLAT SHAIl_L NOT BE FILED IN THE CLERK ANDlRECORDS OFFICE FOR BURNET COUNTY, TEXAS. g TT] g )
' i ) | | PHONE: (830) 798-3978 PHONE: (512)578-3216 | é - -
PEAK HOUR. 476 GPM | EMAIL: ABURDELL@CITYOFBURNET.COM EMAIL: OSSF@LCRA.ORG g 2 .
_ : _ _ . _ ‘ : W= 19k
WALLIS MESHIER, DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES . DATE: e > © W
CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS. , - | - = < &
. : o g g
- _ = WD
POWER © IELECOM T % e
PEDERNALES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS o 4
CONTACT: PLANNING DEPARTMENT CONTACT: WILLIAM MOSELY B.
PHONE:(512) 355-2131  (512) 863-2745
EMAIL: BERTRAMPLANNING@PECI,COM  EMAIL: WILLIAM.MOSELEY®FTR.COM -
DATE:

SEPTEMBER, 2018

PRCJECT:
JOB # 18-150

DRAWING'S NAME:

COVER SHEET
DESIGN: CHECKED:
EPL . HE. jr,
DRAWN: A APPROVED: .
- CEPL HE. jr.

SHEET:

I g i

L]

T
=




LINE TABLE | " CURVE TABLE %
Line # | Length | Direction CURVE # | RADIUS | TANGENT | ARC LENGTH | BEARING | CHORD LENGTH | DELTA
L1 | 48.62' |S6637'34™W | | C1 | 50.00' | 35.42 61.64° | N85'43'55"E 57.81' | 070'38°03" &
L2 | 130.68 | N11°48"17"W c2 | 5000 | 65.49 91.87° | NO213'32"W |  79.48'  |10516°31"
L3 | 198.689' | N25°07°29"W c3 325.00' | 67.18 132.49" | S86'4919°W |  131.57’ 02321°23"
L4 | 53.49" | N24°13'24"W C4 | |225.000| 18.92' | 3775 | N8e1828™W | - 37.71" - | 009°36'51" z
' . Ton? ' ] 3 3 ' 1 ’ . [P =
L5 | 155.58' | S39'35'22"F c5 50.00° | 1407.35 153.53 N33'08'27"E 99.94 175'55'50 o
" [&]
L7 | 11.08" | N77°07°58"E- co 425.00' | 137.76' 266.43" | N72°28'17"E 262.09° | 035°55'07" 0o 50’ 100 &
L8 | 32.01" | N7710°10%E C10  [275.00° | 111.08' | 21113 | N76'42'00%E 205.98’ 043'59'19" -
, . ; SCALE
L9 7275 | N77°07°58"E C1t | 350.00° | 62.43 |  123.56 S64°49°09"W 122.92" 020°13°37”
L10 | 63.63" | N77°07'S8’E C12 | 350.00° | 113.45° | 219.41" | S7228'17"W 215.84’ 035'55°07" LEGEND
L11 | 32.80° | NO2'56’55"E C13 | 475.00'| 55.37° 110.25" | NB3'46°54"E 110.00’ 01317°54” | ‘
- PROPERTY BOUNDARY rid
L12 | 87.17" | N24°40"18" ) : : P : R . 5
| _ 24:40"18"W C14 | 550.00°| 64.12 127.65 S8346'54"W 127.37 013'17'54 o LOT BOUNDARY :
L13 | 93.16" | N28B'49'35"W C15 |275.00°| 33.71 67.09° N89 04’33"W 66.92’ 013'58741” 7 LOT NUMBER | i .
L14 | 38.73" | NO4'49°30"W | | 5,239 SF LOT AREA | m«?ﬁg’?‘?ﬁgﬁzﬁg
- — : 00 | Pt P S RN A
L15 | 130.49° | N29°09'30"W . 100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN \{.@g‘f RO
: A Al Z e . PROPOSED SIDEWALK NGRS, 8 ?gﬁ"a“i-'zfé
L16 | 27.42° | N21°37°15"W o5 . \\\:5 PN 2
’ 30° | 233 — == —- DRAINAGE EASEMENT Py ¥ ligie O/ O
L17 | 128.56" | N29°09°30"W 388 . BN
- : : r 5:..3/&{%, , i : wase EXISTING 150° WETLAND BUFFER N O %ng
1 - 1 1 ; . . . : : ? o
-8 | 2009 | NO4'49 SO°W NS = O | ——— e EXISTING 150' CREEK BUFFER NS
“ g= Il | v,
| | 7Tl Sl FRESH WATER POND | |
5 . l/ °o.o?‘

LAND USE SUMMARY

TOTAL ACRES: 17.45 ACRES
PROPOSED ZONING: (R1) RESIDENTIAL SINGLE—FAMILY

%

ants, LTD

néo1 Kyle Crossing, Suite A Phone: {(512) 3 12-5040 [Tax (512) 3125399

Kljic:, Tcxas 78840

e-mail: custro@cuatroconsultants.com

UATRO

}
N Iy 5
- 13 LAND USE: . SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL o
§ | A2 RESIDENTIAL, 'SINGLE FAMILY :  16.41 ACRES 3
Y N | . ~ STREET R.O.W. :  1.04 ACRES S
N | . b L TOTAL STREET LENGTH : 847 LF 5
\\ LOT 2 | I:QT e} | OT 4 T o™ ‘ : 5
_ N ) | jo R:0.W. DEDICATION - :  0.00 ACRES o
| ; NO. OF DRAINAGE LOTS : 0 LOTS
1 | |

PROPOSED DENSITY:
AVERAGE RESIDENTIAL LOT SIZE : 1.26 ACRES

Q'!ziz’,

1 . .
" 41T ~|_1.01T™ACRES
\\\ 1 24\£\SRES .:\\ . 1\7 AQ%: - “ AC\\

;‘f

T
i .
i/

I .
| S
| RE IR
™ 7668 M EpCHER,
| o ToL V2 = |z
< |&
R
8. S el
> | 8,2
RN
52 S e
- ¢ _mgmg
z EEEO
_ no
2 | Z0>,
] » Euw
= | 62
wd [+
g |o >
B | @
AR '
%\\\ R |
| j _
COROT 13 N | : | | 0 | 40°x40" FIRE DEPT/ g
. M09\ ACRES | I\ NI I RN AN o I ~ EMERGENCY SERVICES -
o BT ap | g LOL 9 e\ e 8 — 1 ' ACCESS FASEMENT G =
‘ N 10 21| 1°1.01 ACRES 7\ | T - N oz 8
. ACRES | o — | y INSET "A—A QW &~
R | JNSET AZA wl
R A L, SCALE = 17=30 09%g
S \ | 1 su=z X
"""" ! Hl éa v foa
| [ 2 & .
| ; iy O 8k
Y , ¥ ~ LEGAL DESCRIPTION . Gkvz
- . I . E..
L S~ - —'7-":” ! BEING A 17.45 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, SAME BEING A Z B 2
50" DRAINAGE AND ' - . e l | REPLAT OF LOT 76R OUT OF EAGLE’S NEST SUBDIVISION, - Q
WATER QUALITY - - | SECTION 2, A PRIVATE SUBDIVISION AS RECORDED IN a B
EASEMENT ‘ ' ' ' IJ - DOCUMENT NO. 201809631, OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC B.
o e e N e RECQRDS OF BURNET COUNTY, TEXAS.
l DATE:

SEPTEMBER, 2018

PROJECT:
JQB # 18-1 50

DRAWING'S NAME:
/\ 26 2_ENS3_PRELIMINARY PLAT

DESIGN: | CHECKED:
HE. Jr. HE. jr.

DRAWN: APPROVED:
RLE ~ HE jr.

T 2 OF 4




; UN-DEVELOPED EAGLE_S NEST SUBDIVISION SECTION 3 _ . |"—"
POINT | BASIN| ADDL | AREA RUNOFF Sheet fl Shallow Concentrated Flow Channel flow calculation varies DISCHARGE; Time LEGEND S
: eet flow i : s ‘
OF BASIN|[. A COERFICIENT, : : Unpaved per development NroraLTe Q <yrs.> : .
CONC. <A9fes> C _ . {t) . ninput . *p Py L S Tt_[sheet) L _ S Tt(ShaHOW Con I type Tt(chanmely min.5 Intensity <_CfS> ) ) EX | ST! N G ) P R O P O S E D D ESC Rl PTl O N m
5.84 0.37 50[{Asphalt 0.02 3.68 2.00% 1.05 362 12.00% 1.08 627 3.48 5.61 5,75 12.42 2-yr o’ 200’ 400’ _
5.84 0.40 ~ 50|Asphalt 0.02] 368 2.00% 1.05 362 12.00% 1.08 627 | 3.48 5.61 6.78 15.84 Syr 2 ; _ BOUNDARY LINE
1 1 - 5.84 0.42 50|Asphalt 002 3.68 200%] . 105 362 12.00% 1.08 627 3.48 5.61 758/ . 18.59 10-yr SCALE: 1"=200" - | == —— — — | EASEMENT BOUNDARY
' 5.84 0.46 50{Asphalt _ 0.02 3.68 2.00% 1.05 362 12.00% 1.08 627 3.48 5.61 2.60 2310 |259r ‘ 915 — . —{915}— CONTOURS g
5.84 0.53 50|Asphait ' 002 368 2.00% 1.05 362 | 12.00% 1.08 627 3.48 561 10.16 31.45 100-yr : : ' ' LOT LINE &
0.37 ' 9 - 763 %! - : 10.07 . ‘ Q
5.92 50|Asphakt 0.02 3.68 2.00% 1.05 . 16.50% 1.94 0.00 12.33 4.60 Zoyr e . —» | CENTER LINE OF DITCH A
5.92 0.40 " 50|Asphalt . 0.02 3.68 2.00% 1.05 763 16.50% 1.94 ' .0.00 12,33 5.46 12.92 S-yr ' o
2 2 | - 5.92 0.42 50|Asphalt 0.02| 348 2.00% 1.05 763 | 1650% 1oa| _ooo] 1233  e12] 1521 |ioyr | | OHE - OHE— OVER HEAD ELECTRIC
5.92 0.46 50|Asphalt | oo2| 368 2.00% 1.05 763 | 1650%| 194 0.00| 1233}  §99] 1904 o5y | : OHT _ OHT OVER HEAD TELEPHONE
5.92 0.53 * 50|Asphalt 002] 368 2.00% 1.05 763 16.50% 1.94 ' 000]  12.33 830 - 26.04  |100-yr ' : v : & POWER POLE
5.57 0.37 100|Asphalt | o002 3.68 2.00% 1.82 241 16.50% 0.61 698 - 3.88 12.33} . 480 947 2-yr : Ererrs — GUY WIRE Z
557 0.40 100]Asphalt 002 368 2.00% 1.82 241 16.50% 0.61 698 | 3.88| 1233  s46)  12.16  |syr ' B sg ' ss STORM SEWER - %
3 . : ' 16.509 4. . o —
_ 3 5;.57 _ 0.42. 100{Asphalt 0.02 3.68 2.00% 1.82 241 16.50% 0.61 698 3.88 12.33 6.12 1‘ 31 10-yr B — ] - — | cvp/ RcP PIPES hed
557 0.46 100|Asphalt 0.02 3.68 2.00% 1.82 241 16.50% '0.61 698 3.88 12.33 6.99 17.91 25-yr - .y
; . . “i%‘k‘\ _ iy
5.57 0.53 100|Asphalt 002 3.8 2.00% 1.82 241 16.50% 061} . 698 3.88 12.33 830 2450 100-yr - - GAS GAS —— GAS LINE mﬂ;‘; s ‘3‘\5‘&1
. - - ~ e
: e e — e : ‘,"C'o ;“"‘: 8 H ‘».":Zk;«l\.t\:!:
[ S b L PAvEMENT ST ER D N
. . — . — — — ) \(fmz :T_. ('\’_:';:\3331
LA e For o i F 7 | coNCRETE NN P v SR
LRI AT Lomg heh . . N .d,.?gi
| - - PRLTPNB Bl 6
7 ; ] . . . . X . \ 'u}\‘ .UJ'IQ:}\"&?.:’
Pa it o o : _ _ _ _ . —O0—O0~—0— | —O——0——0— | CHAIN LINK FENCE R Wt ol g8
3 | | | , Yy - N R N i R
OFFSITE DRAINAGE AREA MAP - - | | | - s i | WOOD FENCE Wl 2 e
' | ' % BARB WIRE FENCE ~ plXERRy
SCALE: 1"=2,000" T - | 3
FIRE LANE o
k)
< s+ e s wo e o ADA ACCESSIBLE ROUTE N
, ~ £
ans wewon memm wew | PHASING LINE | Y L~
' ‘ i
. - [
s e m e m s s | OFFSITE DRAINAGE BOUNDARY ( : i Q g &
o3
S b B
i O B N WA BE 28 | ON-—SITE DRAINAGE BOUNDARY o 3
- TR
A
DRAINAGE FLOW DIRECTION -
i ' ' N N9
< PRCPERTY BOUNDARY - whed 0 E
o) wemusm  swsewems | PROPOSED DRAINAGE BOUNDARY Q 2 d-
S b . ? S e (g — | PROPOSED DRAINAGE EASEMENT . oos B
of \“\.1‘5' 5L, (PER PLAT) "t~ DRAINAGE AND WATER W 5 o<
~, L\ p % | QUALITY EASEMENT, _ ¢ Loy
DE. (PER (\w) K ; : — G — o R e (S 3 e TIME OF CONCENTRATION a &5 u%
Yy - . .
B < BE ' . ' Wy
o 1C . . , _ @ . £90
5 EXISTING TIME OF el - T O\ - ‘ ey = p— DRAINAGE AREA § ;g
- CONCENTRATION -—v____l;_['-m\:::ﬁ AR - . PR _ : ' s - . N o _ . _ C) e~
e .",f_..f_f“\\& SN NG LA ' POINT OF CONCENTRATION e
““‘-‘.A - ~ :Y; v
o - 2
. 3 —
, A o =
._\\‘V\L*m_ . \\ ‘ \’{o\ Q’
S AN | 4 ) 2
2. ,‘Q_\L \ .\ PROPOSED TIME OF Z
VEGETATIVE Zapfrmrecd "o/ CONCENTRATION =1
FLTER STRIE XN NN T oo e e &
(TYPICAL)Y | e omye e 088 B o 21y p 4
s 5, i : B e 1§ ; gi
P i B\ B T N T B 2 <
+ =2k N i da -+ PROPOSED TIME OF ol
L I\-co © ~ '
i 2l W 0.
- ) 4 »
w |2
=3 h §
4 | il =
/A Bﬂ%‘ ‘ , ‘ DEVELOPED EAGLES NEST SUBDIVISION SECTION 3 _ 2 g P 2 >:
= ’7 FILTER STRIP e POINT |BASIN| ADD'L | AREA Rul?off . sheet flow ‘ Shallow Concentrated Flow Channel flow calculation varies IISCHARGE | TIME Sl e 2 e =
E . o Gt 5 OF BASIN | <Acres> | Coefficient ) LINPAVED . per development Q <yrs.> ﬁ 5
& TYPICAL) 2 & o : TOTAL TC No o =
S : / : CONC. A L{ft) " ninput *n [ 5 Tefsheet] L S Ti(shallow con) L type | Tydwmen | s | Entensity <cfs> e
% . | . - . = . ey 2
; 7.49 0.37 100[Range {natural) .15 3.68 *15.00% 4.08 230 38.00% 0,39 711 3.95 8.42 5.20 14.42 2-yr m (18 o
7.49 0.40| * 100[Range (natural) 015 368 15.00% 408 © 230 oou|  oa3s 711 3.95 8.42 515 1843 [5.4r ] ¢ 0 O
01 o1 - 7.49 © 042  100|Range (natural) 015|368 15.00% 4.08 230 38.00% 0.39 7 3.95 8.42 £.88 21.64 10-yr z w‘b >_
7.49 0.46| 100{Range {natural) 0.15 3.68 1500%) . 408 230 38.00% .39 71 3.95 8.42 7.83° 26,98 2591 m m ’E E
7.49 0.53|  100|Range {naiural) 015|  363]  i5do% 4.08 230 | 38.00% 0.39 [ 3.95 g42| 927 3881 100-yr m -4 a s
56.55 - 046] 13.5|Asphalt 0.02 3.68 2.00%| - 0.37 1,000 13.00% - 2.86 1,263 7.02 10.25 450 12745 |2 h i m
. 56.55 " 49| 13.5|Asphalt 0.02 3.68 . 2.00% 0.37 1,000 13.00% 286 | 1,283 7.02 10.25 5.80 160.78 Svr m Z; 3
o 02 Q2 - 56.55 0.52] 13.5(Asphalt 0.02 3,68 2.00% 0.37 1,000 13.00% 2.86 1,263 7.02 10.25 6.50 181.05 10-yr q m
56.35 ) 0.56| 13.5]Asgphalt 0.02 1.68 2.00% 0.37 1,800 13.00% 2.86 1,263 7.02 10.25 741 23469 |osr ﬂ i
56,55 0.64| 13.5|Asphalt 0.02 3.68 2.00% 037 1,000 13.00% 2.86 1,263 7.02 10.25 8.78 317.94 100-yr
7.80 0.46] 13.5[Asphalt 0.02 3.68 2.00% 0.37 664 6.00% 2.80 0.00 500 5.88 21.11 2-yr
7.80 0.49| 13.5|Asphalt 0.02 3.68 2,00% 0.37 664 . 6.00% 2.80 0.00 5.00 6.94 268.52 5-yr
0-3 03 - 7.80 0.52| 13.5lAsphalt 0.02 3,68 2.00% 0.37 664 6.00% 2.50 0.00] - 5.00 7.75| - 31.45 10-yr
' 7.80° 056{ 13.5[Asphalt 0.02 3.68 2.00%} 037 664 6.00% 2.80 - 0.00 5.00 8.79 38,40 25-yr "
7.80 0.64] 13.5|Asphalt 0.02 3.68 2.00% 0.37 664 6.00% 2.80 - 0.00 5.00 10.38 5183|100y 3
'w—“""""‘““'\__:: 13.15 0.46)  100|Range {natural} 0.15 3.68 4.00% 6.92 665 6.70% ©o26s - ©0.00f 9,58 5.01 3028 |2.yr wl
M —— 13.15 - 048]  100|Range (natural) .15 358 4.00% 692 665 6.70% 1.65 . poo| s8] se2| 3818 [s4r . =
O-4 04 - 13.15 0.52]  100|Range {natural} 0.15) 368 4,00% 692 565 5.70% 265 - 0.0 9.58 663 4534 |10 i g
1315 0.56]  100{Range {naturat} 0150 3.68 4.00% 6.92 665 6.70% 2,65 - 0.00 3.58 7.56 5567 25-yr £ (oe )
1215 C.64|  100[Range (natural) 015/ 368 ©4.00% 6.92 665 6.70% 2,65 - ©000 .58 2.96 75.37 100-yr (= NI 4 e
7.08 0.45| 13.5[|Asphalt 0.02 368 2.00% 037 420 17.00% 1.05 ) 0.00 500] . 5.88 19.16 2-yr m . E (75]
. 7.08 049| 13.5|Asphalt 002| 368 2.00%| 037 420 17.00%| . 105 0.00 5.00 6.94 24.08 S-yr E 3 @
0-5 Qs |, 7.08 ©052| 13.5|Asphalt 002|368 2.00% 0.37 420 17.00%| 1.05 ' 0.00 500 775 28.54 10-yr g T g
7.08 | 056  13.5|Asphalt 002 3.68 2.00% . 037 420 17.00% 1.05 0.00 5.00 8.79 34.85 25-yr ) Ll
7.08 0.64] 13.5|Asphalt . 6o2|  3.68 2.00% 0,37 az0 | 17.00% 1.05 0.00 so0| 1038 47,04 100-y7 § 1T} z‘ [
3.82 0.37]  13.5|Range (natural) 0.15| 3.68 2.00% 1.84 500 2.40% 2,80 675 3.75 8,39 521{- 7.36 2-yr T - l"’h
3,82 040 13.5|Range {natural} 015 3168 2.00% 1.84 500 3.40%) 2.80 675 3.75 8.39 6.16 941 Seyr g )m g i
0-6 06 - 3.82 0.42] 13.5|Range {natural) 0.15 1.68 2.00% 1.84 500 3.40% 2.80 675 ' 3.75 839 688 1105 10-yr @ I“' ﬁ' z
2.82 0.46] 13.5|Range (natural) 0150 268 2.00% 1.89 500 3.40% 2.80 675 3.75 8.39 7.84 1377 251 - (14 o
3.82 . 0.53] 13.5|Range (natural) 0.15 1,68 2.00% 1.84 500 3.40% 2.80 675 3.75 8.39 9.28 18.79 100-yr g L1 3
1.53 0.44 100{Asphalt ooz 3.68 15.00% 0.81 228 12.00% 0.63 0.00 5.00 5.88 3.08 2.y = & m
_ 1.53 0.47| 100|Asphalt 0.02 3.68 15.00% 0.81 228 12.00% 0.68 C 000 . 500 0 6.94 4.99 5yr g Q
0-7 a7 . 1.53 050  too|Asphalt 0.02 3.68 15.00% 0.81 228 12,00% 0.68 0.00 5.00 7.75 5.93 10-yr () $ '
' 1.53 054 100jAsphalt 002| 368  15.00% 0.81 228 12.00% 0.68 0,00 5.00 8.79 7.26 25-yr B.
153 061 100{Asphalt 002 368 15.00% 0.31 228 12.00% 0,68 0.0¢] 500 1038 969 . |100yr
5.84 0.44 50({Asphalt 0.02 3.68 2.00% 1.05 362 12.00% 1.08] | 527 3.48 5.61 5.75 14.77 2-yr
| s 0470 solasphalt 002 368 2.00% 1.05 362 12.00% 1.08 527 3.48 561 673 1862  |syr DATE:
1 1 . 5.84 Q.30 50]Asphalt 0.02 3168 2.00% 105 362 12.00% 1.08 827 3.48 5.61 7.58 2213 10-yr SEPTEMBER, 2018
' ' 5:84 " 054 50/Asphalt o02| 358 200% 205 362 12.00% 1.08 627 3.48 561 se0| 2712 [asyr PROJECT:
5.54 . 0.61]  50|Asphalt 002 358 2.00% 1.05 362 | . 12.00% 1.08 627 348| . 561 1016 3820 |00y : JOB # 18-150
5.92 0.44 50]Asphalt’ 002 3.68 2.00% 105 763 16.50% 1.94 0.00 12,33 4.60 11.97 2- "
5.92 047 50 Asphalt 0.02 3.68 2.00% 1.05 763 16.50% 1.94 0.00 12.33 5.46 15.18 5 y DRAWING'S NAME.
. K a . X .00% . i .50% . X . X - ~yr
2 : : ! ENS3_MASTER DRAINAGE
2 2 - 592 0.50 50(Asphalt 0.02 3.68 2.00% 1.0% 763 16.50% 194 0.00 12.33 6.12 8.1 10-yr
5.52 " 054|  s0|Asphalt 6.02] 368 2.00% 1o5) . 783 16.50% 1.94 000f 1233 593 2285 {5y DESIGN: CHECKED:
5.82 0.61 50|Asphalt 0.02 3.68 2.00% 1.05 763 16.50% 1.94] 000] 1233 8.30 29.97 100-yr HE. jr. HE. jr.
G 5.57 0.44]  106/Asphalt 002|368 2.00% 1.82 241 16.50% 0.51 698 388 1233 4,60 1127 oy DRAWN: | APPROVED:
= 5.57 047]  100|Asphait 0.02 3.68 2.00% 1.82 241 16.50% 0.61 698 3.83 12.33 5.46 14.28 Sy RLE HE. jr.
% 3 3 - 5.57 0.50| 100|Asphait 0.02 3.68 2.00% 1.82 241 16.50% - 0.51 698 3.88 12.33 61z 17.04 10-y7
L 5.57 0.54]  100|Asphalt : 0.02{ 368 2.00%| - 182 241 16.50% - 0.61 698 338 1233 6.99 21.03 25-yr SHEET: 3 OF &
i 557 0.61| 100|Asphalt 0.02 3.68 2.00% ‘182 241 16.50% 051 . 698 i 3.38 12.33 8.30 28,20 100-yr

et s ripgEs e e s o wss T




| 5
TAG NO.| TREE SIZE | TREE TYPE TAG NO.| TREE SIZE | TREE TYPE | |TAG NO.| TREE SIZE | TREE TYPE
201 14" LIVE QAK 222 17" LIVE OAK 243 12" LIVE OAK =
202 20" LIVE_OAK 223 20" LIVE OAK 244 13" LIVE_OAK -
203 19” LIVE OAK 224 13" LIVE OAK 245 28" LIVE OAK
204 22" LIVE OAK 225 14" LIVE OAK 246 | 11”7 . | LIVE OAK
205 15” LIVE OAK | 226 13" LIVE OAK . 247 12" . LIVE OAK 2
206 22" LIVE OAK 227 10” LIVE OAK. 248 23 LIVE OAK E
207 25" LIVE_OAK 228 9" LIVE OAK | 249 | 22" ELM &
208 127,18” | LIVE OAK 229 | 12" LIVE OAK 250 20" LIVE OAK _ S|
209 25" LIVE OAK 230 10" LIVE OAK 251 15" LIVE OAK T
210 9" LIVE OAK 231 10" LIVE OAK 252 11" LIVE OAK
211 11" LIVE 0AK 232 | 9"10%11" | WvE 0AK | - | 253 12" LIVE OAK
212 11°,6" LIVE_OAK 233 14" LIVE OAK 254 1" _LIVE_OAK
213 7" LIVE OAK 236 | 14" LIVE OAK 255 11" LIVE OAK >
214 7"5" LIVE OAK 235 9” LIVE OAK 256 117 LIVE OAK - 7
215 7 | LIVE OAK. 236 14" | LvE os 257 72" LIVE OAK 2
216 8" LIVE OAK 237 9"  LIVE OAK . 258 117 LIVE. OAK ;“”;LTETQQ\;*\‘\%
217 7 LIVE OAK 238 13" | LVE OAK 259 12" *LIVE OAK L :“'3?4\ 1o %;e?r;:
218 7 LIVE 0AK 239 12" 117 LIVE OAK 260 | 117 LIVE QAK x\ﬁf\)i% &3 %@z}‘ég
219 9 LIVE OAK 240 10”8 LIVE OAK | 261 13" LIVE OAK 1 ET‘E’B §§;
220 23" LIVE OAK 241 | 117 LIVE OAK 262 20" LIVE OAK ﬁ?.g-;;l: . bo _ﬂ,géi;’
221 | 117 | uve oak 242 10" | LVE OAK R ER e

c-mail: cuatro@custroconsultants.com

ﬁ\l‘

0%

| | T

1 Q2

] N T
N\ - “ =)
L \Lot 2 rOT 6 § 2
\ N o s 0o

Y TN ot !
;\\ 1.24-\\\\éCRES t\.\ 1-%.21 ACRES_.;;

.

.y

.56 ACRES

<

12‘<5'2

o,

3501 Kylc Crossing,f)uiteA F}'uonc-. (5 | l} 312-5040 [ax (f i ?_) 3125399

Kﬂic, Tc:.\;as 78840

X' 1.10\ACRES

oy reer |
. {75\ WATER QUALITY BUFFER \.

SIGN ZONE AND DRAINAGE EASEMENY N
EASEM(EN (PER\PLAT) S~ -1
) h LoD [ AN | e =TT N T T A e — — \ | ' K z |
. \ — ~— _ o) )
T ﬁ*—} \\'\\ . : > g §
N u |5 g
MENT AND e E g‘*”z;‘
RECE - |
(PER Loty o CASEMENT Mo =3 Sz5k
— _1 DO ;&
T—-224) \\\\ — (72] g, 2
C12. 50 DRy, — LLY Wy~ O
N Waze \NAG - 1] Z 0>
: 2|4 s
—— - u 2
. O -
I < o
| o
: N e N e A O R W N 1.5
i .
!
| . \ A
| S | \ b
| i
: ' v
N LOL 9 - R
AN N | 1.01 ACRES \ ak,®
! ' 101ACRES T mg.wh
o N o~ zy3y
| AN 1T-253 .l \ g o = B
I ) 7254 T—Zlo S \ T Z -y
AN I Y s T~255 2 | \“\\ ' _ B . P g W
»\\\ i < 1 l | \\\)\ : . a E L5 ] E
N PaglT-2se o z |
q._\i__ ____T___l____l___m____.,,m“:‘.«m,{m:\ _______ E E g
' 0" DRAINAGE AND | ) - O
\ WATER QUALITY ' | | : - o &

\ | ASEMENT - ‘ o | | ' A | |
_______________ \l_._.._.... ...M ...[\..I..._._._.__.____._.__.____.___.___......qﬂ....,_‘m...__._____ - . . )
g . Ny 20 ‘ : ‘ - - ‘ o - T - : _ - :
. S73'57 13 _ | _ | | o | . | _ SEPTEMBER, 2018

) ".W 841
\ \ ™ PROJECT:
RES™

) JOB # 18—150
wTUR
Bl

PRELIMINARY_TREE SURVEY

\ 97 | DRAWING'S NAME:
a; WW.QN.762\

DESIGN: [ CHECKED:
: @\ - HE. jr.
%05 a P N DRAWN: APPROVED:

7 RLE HE. ir.
O

SHEET: 4 GF &

TR MR T R A T T e S e s i i TR DR L TR T § T e B gk T io W T BT R ey e R S L et TR e I T ST WS R G W T S ST | G Ry e IR T R SRR G LS by T U T FUS R e magar e Ve g




Meeting Date:

Action Item:

Background:

Information:

Development Services ITEM 4.4

Wallis Meshier

Director of Development Services
(512) 715-3215
wmeshier@cityofburnet.com

Agenda Item Brief

February 12, 2019

Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2012-06 TO
REZONE APPROXIMATELY 1.00 ACRE, HAVING A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF S4345 F.O.C. SUBDIVISION,
LOT 1, FROM ITS PRESENT DESIGNATION OF HEAVY
INDUSTRIAL—DISTRICT *“lI-2” TO A DESIGNATION OF
LIGHT COMMERCIAL—DISTRICT *“C-1,” SAID TRACT
BEING GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF
ELLEN HALBERT DRIVE, APPROXIMATELY 884 FEET
WEST OF THE INTERSECTION WITH HOUSTON CLINTON
DRIVE: W. Meshier

This item is for consideration of a request to rezone a one-
acre property generally located between the Burnet
Municipal Airport and the Texas Department of Criminal
Justice facility on the north side of Ellen Halbert Drive
(Exhibit A). The subject property is currently zoned Heavy
Industrial — District “I-2” (Exhibit B). The applicant has
requested to rezone the property to Light Commercial —
District “C-1".

District “C-1" (Light Commercial) is governed by Sec. 118-45
of the Code of Ordinances and allows a mix of commercial
uses including, retail, office, light commercial, and similar
uses excluding residential and multifamily.” Permitted uses
include banks, personal services, professional services,
restaurants, daycares, and real estate offices.

When acting on a zone change request, the usual factors
considered include consistency with the Future Land Use
Map (FLUM) and existing patterns of development.

Chapter 1 of the City’'s Comprehensive Development Plan
includes the following statements:



The [Comprehensive Development] Plan [...] provides
general policy guidelines and principles for achieving
physical development goals.

[The Comprehensive Plan] is an instrument to guide the
physical development of the community in an orderly and
constructive manner. [...] The plan is intended to provide
local elected officials with a foundation upon which sound
decisions can be made regarding the future physical
development of the City of Burnet.

Chapter 5 of the Plan notes the following regarding future
land use:

The primary purpose of land use planning is to set forth
policies regarding existing and future uses of public and
private property. The plan establishes the types of
relationships among land uses that a city would like to
encourage.

The FLUM designates this property as being intended for
future industrial development (Exhibit C). Although the
proposed “C-1" (Light Commercial) designation is not
consistent with the FLUM recommendation for this area, staff
is of the determination that the proposed “C-1" (Light
Commercial) zoning is appropriate given the property
immediately to the south and west is designated for
commercial use.

An analysis of the property adjacent to the subject parcel is
as follows:

North South East West
Zoning “1-2" “C-2" “-2" “C-2"
FLUM Commercial Commercial Industrial Commercial
Land Use Vacant Vacant Vacant Vacant

Recommendation:

recommend approval of the first reading of Ordinance No.
2019-05 as presented.




ORDINANCE NO. 2019-05

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2012-06 TO REZONE
1.00 ACRE, HAVING A LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF S4345 F.O.C.
SUBDIVISION, LOT 1, FROM ITS PRESENT DESIGNATION OF HEAVY
INDUSTRIAL—DISTRICT “I-2” TO A DESIGNATION OF LIGHT
COMMERCIAL—DISTRICT “C-1,” SAID TRACT BEING GENERALLY
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF ELLEN HALBERT DRIVE,
APPROXIMATELY 884 FEET WEST OF THE INTERSECTION WITH
HOUSTON CLINTON DRIVE; PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE;
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Burnet, on
February 4, 2019, did conduct a public hearing for the purpose of taking public comment
regarding the proposal to assign Light Commercial—District “C-1" to 1.00 acre having a
legal description of S4345 F.O.C. Subdivision, Lot 1, said tract being generally located
on the north side of Ellen Halbert Drive, approximately 884 feet west of the intersection
with Houston Clinton Drive; and

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Burnet, on February 12, 2019 did
conduct its own public hearing for the purpose of taking public comment regarding the
proposal to assign Light Commercial—District “C-1" to 1.00 acre having a legal
description of S4345 F.O.C. Subdivision, Lot 1, said tract being generally located on the
north side of Ellen Halbert Drive, approximately 884 feet west of the intersection with
Houston Clinton Drive; and

WHEREAS, The City Council, based on due consideration of the Planning and
Zoning Commission recommendation, and its own findings, did determine that assigning
Light Commercial—District “C-1" to 1.00 acre having a legal description of S4345
F.O.C. Subdivision, Lot 1, said tract being generally located on the north side of Ellen
Halbert Drive, approximately 884 feet west of the intersection with Houston Clinton
Drive to be consistent with development patterns in the surrounding area and consistent
with the best public interest of the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BURNET, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. Findings. The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and
correct and are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all
purposes as findings of fact.

Section 2. Zoning Changed. The 11.00 acre having a legal description of
S4345 F.O.C. Subdivision, Lot 1, said tract being generally located on the north side of
Ellen Halbert Drive, approximately 884 feet west of the intersection with Houston Clinton
Drive is hereby assigned a zoning designation of Light Commercial—District “C-1".




Section 3. Repealer. Other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent that they are in conflict.

Section 4. Severability. Should any provisions of this ordinance be held void or
unconstitutional, it is hereby provided that all other parts of the same which are not held
void or unconstitutional shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance is effective upon final passage and
approval.

Section 6. Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the
meeting at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that
public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by
the Open Meeting Act, Chapter. 551, Loc. Gov't. Code.

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this 12" day of February, 2019.
FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this 26" day of February, 2019.

CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS

Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kelly Dix, City Secretary



Meeting Date:

Agenda Item:

Background:

Information:

Development Services ITEM 4.5

Wallis Meshier

Director of Development Services
(512) 715-3215
wmeshier@cityofburnet.com

Agenda Item Brief
February 12, 2019

Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2012-06 TO
REZONE APPROXIMATELY 2.76 ACRES OUT OF THE
B.B. CASTLEBERRY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 187,
FROM ITS PRESENT DESIGNATION OF
AGRICULTURAL—DISTRICT “A” TO A DESIGNATION OF
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL—DISTRICT “R-1,” SAID
TRACT, KNOWN AS 1139 MORMON MILL ROAD BEING
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF
MORMON MILL ROAD AND SOUTH OF THE RAILROAD;
PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE: W. Meshier

This item is for consideration of a request to rezone a 2.76
acre property generally located north of Mormon Mill Road
and south of the railroad tracks (Exhibit A). The subject
property is currently zoned Agricultural — District “A” (Exhibit
B). The applicant has requested to rezone the property to
SingleOFamily Residential — District “R-1".

District “R-1" (Single-Family Residential) is governed by Sec.
118-25 of the Code of Ordinances and allows “detached
single family dwellings with a minimum of 1,100 square feet
of living area, and related accessory structures, on a
minimum lot size of 7,600 square foot.” Permitted uses
include single family homes, parks, playgrounds, public
buildings, police stations, and fire stations.

When acting on a zone change request, the usual factors
considered include consistency with the Future Land Use
Map (FLUM) and existing patterns of development.

Chapter 1 of the City’'s Comprehensive Development Plan
includes the following statements:



Staff Analysis:

The [Comprehensive Development] Plan [...] provides
general policy guidelines and principles for achieving
physical development goals.

[The Comprehensive Plan] is an instrument to guide the
physical development of the community in an orderly and
constructive manner. [...] The plan is intended to provide
local elected officials with a foundation upon which sound
decisions can be made regarding the future physical
development of the City of Burnet.

Chapter 5 of the Plan notes the following regarding future
land use:

The primary purpose of land use planning is to set forth
policies regarding existing and future uses of public and
private property. The plan establishes the types of
relationships among land uses that a city would like to
encourage.

The FLUM designation for the subject property is
Residential. The proposed “R-1" (Single-Family Residential)
zoning designation is consistent with the FLUM
recommendation for this area. The proposed zoning is also
consistent with the property immediately to the east.

An analysis of the property adjacent to the subject parcel is
as follows:

North South East West
Zoning “A” ‘A’ “R-1" “‘R-1" “A”
FLUM Open Space Residential / Residential Residential
Gov.
Land Use Railroad / Low-Density Single-Family | Low-Density
Vacant Residential / Residential Residential /
Vacant Railroad

Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval of the attached ordinance as
written.



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-06

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2012-06 TO REZONE
APPROXIMATELY 2.76 ACRES OUT OF THE B.B. CASTLEBERRY
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 187, FROM ITS PRESENT
DESIGNATION OF AGRICULTURAL—DISTRICT “A” TO A
DESIGNATION OF SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL—DISTRICT “R-1,"
SAID TRACT, KNOWN AS 1139 MORMON MILL ROAD BEING
GENERALLY LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF MORMON MILL
ROAD AND SOUTH OF THE RAILROAD; PROVIDING A REPEALER
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING
AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Burnet, on
February 4, 2019, did conduct a public hearing for the purpose of taking public comment
regarding the proposal to assign Single-Family Residential—District “R-1" to
approximately 2.76 acres out of the B.B. Castleberry Survey, Abstract Number 187, said
tract being known as 1139 Mormon Mill Road, generally located on the north side of
Mormon Mill Road and south of the railroad; and

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Burnet, on February 12, 2019 did
conduct its own public hearing for the purpose of taking public comment regarding the
proposal to assign Single-Family Residential—District “R-1" to approximately 2.76 acres
out of the B.B. Castleberry Survey, Abstract Number 187, said tract being known as
1139 Mormon Mill Road, generally located on the north side of Mormon Mill Road and
south of the railroad; and

WHEREAS, The City Council, based on due consideration of the Planning and
Zoning Commission recommendation, and its own findings, did determine that assigning
Light Commercial—District “C-1" to 1.00 acre having a legal description of S4345
F.O.C. Subdivision, Lot 1, said tract being generally located on the north side of Ellen
Halbert Drive, approximately 884 feet west of the intersection with Houston Clinton
Drive to be consistent with development patterns in the surrounding area and consistent
with the best public interest of the City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BURNET, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. Findings. The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and
correct and are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all
purposes as findings of fact.

Section 2. Zoning Changed. Approximately 2.76 acres out of the B.B.
Castleberry Survey, Abstract Number 187, said tract being known as 1139 Mormon Mill
Road, generally located on the north side of Mormon Mill Road and south of the railroad
is hereby assigned a zoning designation of Single-Family Residential—District “R-1".




Section 3. Repealer. Other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent that they are in conflict.

Section 4. Severability. Should any provisions of this ordinance be held void or
unconstitutional, it is hereby provided that all other parts of the same which are not held
void or unconstitutional shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance is effective upon final passage and
approval.

Section 6. Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the
meeting at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that
public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by
the Open Meeting Act, Chapter. 551, Loc. Gov't. Code.

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this 12" day of February, 2019.
FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this 26" day of February, 2019.

CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS

Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor
ATTEST:

Kelly Dix, City Secretary



Meeting Date:

Agenda Item:

Background:

Information:

Fiscal Impact:

Recommendation:

Police Department ITEM 4.6

Paul Nelson

Police Chief
(512)-756-6404
pnelson@cityofburnet.com

Agenda Item Brief

February 12, 2019

Discuss and consider action: Authorize and approve the
purchase of four (4) Level IIIA Ballistic Vests for the Police
Department patrol officers: P. Nelson

The Burnet Police Department purchases and supplies all
officers’ ballistic vests. The Ballistic Vests expire after five
years.

Currently we have two officers that their vests have expired
this year, and we have two new officers that are wearing
vests that do not fit them properly. This is a safety and
liability issue for the department. The new ballistic vests
are load bearing vests that will allow the officers to place
most of their equipment on instead of on the duty belts,
resulting in less pressure on the lower back of the officer.

The cost to purchase the ballistic vests will be $4,500 from
the fund balance budget.

Staff recommends approval of the purchase of four Level llIA
Ballistic Vests for the Police Department.



ITEM 5.1(E.3)

Racial Profiling Report | Full report

Agency Name: Burnet Police Department
Reporting Date: 02/04/2019

TCOLE Agency Number: 53201

Chief Administrator: Paul Nelson

Agency Contact Information:

Phone: 5127566404

Email: phelson@cityofburnetcom
Mailing Address: PO Box 1369

This Agency filed a full report

Burnet Police Department has adopted a detailed written policy on racial profiling. Our
policy:

1) clearly defines acts constituting racial profiling;

2.) strictly prohibit peace officers employed by the Burnet Police Department from engaging
in racial profiling;

3.) implements a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the Burnet Police
Department if the individual believes that a peace officer employed by the Burnet Police
Department has engaged in racial profiling with respect to the individual;

4) provides public education relating to the agency's complaint process;

5.) requires appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by
the Burnet Police Department who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in
racial profiling in violation of the Burnet Police Department's policy adopted under this
article;

6.) require collection of information relating to motor vehicle stops in which a citation is
issued and to arrests made as a result of those stops, including information relating to:

a.) the race or ethnicity of the individual detained;

b.) whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the individual detained
consented to the search; and

c.) whether the peace officer knew the race or ethnicity of the individual detained before



detaining that individual; and

7.) require the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator is
elected, employed, or appointed, to submit an annual report of the information collected
under Subdivision(6) to:

a.) the Commission on Law Enforcement; and

b.) the governing body of each county or municipdlity served by the agency, if the
agency is an agency of a county, municipadlity, or other political subdivision of the state.

Executed by: Paul Nelson
Chief Administrator
Burnet Police Department

Date: 02/04/2019



Burnet Police Department Motor Vehicle Racial Profiling Information

Total stops: 2671

Gender

Female: 1014
Male: 1656

Race or ethnicity

Black: 105

Asian/Pacific Islander: 16

White: 2071

Hispanic/Latino: 2

Alaska Native /American Indian: O

Was race or ethnicity known prior to stop?

Yes: 93
No: 2578

Reason for stop?

Violation of law: 86

Pre existing knowledge: 15
Moving traffic violation: 2040
Vehicile traffic violation: 530

Street address or approximate location of the stop

City street: 1234

US highway: 1391

State highway: 2

County road: 44

Private property or other:

Was a search conducted?

Yes: 78
No: 2593

Reason for Search?

Consent: 37
Contraband: 2
Probable cause: 23



Inventory: 1
Incident to arrest: 15

Was Contraband discovered?

Yes: 29
No: 2642

Description of contraband

Drugs: 15
Currency: O
Weapons: |
Alchohol: 8
Stolen property: O
Other: 5

Result of the stop

Verbal warning: 102

Written warning: 1780

Citation: 761

Written warning and arrest: 27
Citation and arrest: |

Arrest: O

Arrest based on

Violation of Penal Code: 14
Violation of Traffic Law: 9
Violation of City Ordinance: O
Outstanding Warrant 4

Was physical force resulting in bodily injury used during stop

Yes: |
No: 2669

Submitted electronically to the




The Texas Commission on Law Enforcement



Administration ITEM 6.1

Leslie Baugh
Administrative Services
(512)-715-3217

Ibaugh@cityofburnet.com
Agenda Item Brief
Meeting Date: February 12, 2019
Agenda Item: Executive Session: The City of Burnet City Council shall

meet in Executive Session in accordance to the provision of
the Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter
551, and Sub-section 8551.072 — deliberations regarding
real property, commonly known as the Ward property, Lot
2A: L. Baugh

Background:
Information:

Fiscal Impact:

Recommendation: To be determined by Council



Administration ITEM 6.2

Leslie Baugh
Administrative Services
(512)-715-3217

Ibaugh@cityofburnet.com
Agenda Item Brief
Meeting Date: February 12, 2019
Agenda Item: Executive Session: The City of Burnet City Council shall

meet in Executive Session in accordance to the provision of
the Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter
551, and Sub-section §8551.072 — deliberations regarding real
property, commonly known as the Fox property, Lot 30,:
L. Baugh

Background:
Information:

Fiscal Impact:

Recommendation: To be determined by Council



Meeting Date:

Agenda Item:

Background:

Information:

Fiscal Impact:

Recommendation:

Administration ITEM 7.1

Leslie Baugh
Administrative Services
(512)-715-3217
Ibaugh@cityofburnet.com

Agenda Item Brief

February 12, 2019

Discuss and consider action: Regarding the Ward property,
Lot 2A: L. Baugh

Council previously approved staff to pursue acquisition of
land owned by CWSKY Interest LLC., adjacent to the
eastern boundary of the airport (Exhibit “A”).

To fund the purchase of the CWSKY Interest LLC. Property,
at the June 19, 2018 regular City Council meeting, Council
approved TxDOT Aviation Capital Improvement Program
(CIP) grant agreement in the amount of $503,954.

The TxDOT Aviation CIP grant is a 90/10 match. The
Airport’s 10% match of $45,814 is included in the total grant
amount of $503,954.

TxDOT Aviation Appraisal Review Board has approved the
appraisal of the CWSKY Interest LLC. tract and is ready to
extend official offer(s) to purchase the tract.

The Airport is responsible for 100% of costs exceeding
$503,954.

To be determined by Council



Exhibit “A”

19,956 AC.
THE CITY OF
BURNET, TEXAS
VOL. 288, PG. 103
B.C.D.R.

. J, /
W 3 J .I.’
S % /
e 2o e !
/
/
/
. /
sy /
— /
— /
— /
BEARING CRIENTATION REFERENCE O TEXAS
COORDIMATE SYSTEM, CENTRAL ZCNE, NORTH

AMERICAN DATUM OF 83 (NAD 83), 2007 ADJUSTMENT,
THROUGH ~ NGS  MONUMENT AB2873(T27A), ALL
COORDINATES AND DISTANCES ARE SURFACE WVALUES
IN US SURVEY FEET, AND MAY BE CONVERTED TO GRID
VALUES BY MULTIPLYING BY A COMBINED ADWUSTMENT
FACTOR OF 092583596,

THIS PLAT AND CORRESPONDING DESCRIPTION WERE
FPREPARED FROM A SURVEY MADE ON THE GROUND
UNDER MY SUPERVISION DURING THE MONTH OF

18

!

/

LOT 1

STEHLING /SPARKS SUBDIVIDE
PLAT

CABINET 2, SLIDE 171-B
B.C.P.R.

EUGENIO PEREZ SURVEY NO., 41, A-672

&
. 0 8%

P.0O.B. S

FND. 5/8" IR £

N=10,237,825.83
E=2,955,070.45

LEGEND
FOUND 1,/2" LR. UNLESS
OTHERWSE NOTED
SET 3/8" IR, W/ LANDTECH CAP
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
~ BURNET COUNTY
DEED RECCRD
0.P.R.B.C. — OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF
BURNET COUNTY
R.P.R.B.C. — REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF
BURNET COUNTY

B.C.OR

LANDTECH

cagineeringasurveying
2525 Morth Loop West, Sulte 300
Hauston, Texas 77008
T 713-861-7068 F: 713-351-4131
TxEPE No. F-1364 * TXBFLS No. 10015100

SURVEY PLAT OF

0.9729 ACRES
(42,377 sSQ. FT.)

OCTOSE uE. — UTILITY EASEMENT
. B.SL. ~ BUILDING SETBACK LINE
NHUY NGUYEN - AR —K—  — WIRE FENCE
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR MO. 6409 e — WOOD FENCE
FEE SIMPLE

BURNET MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
KATE CRADDOCK FIELD
BURNET, TEXAS
CSJ NO. 1014BRNET




Meeting Date:

Agenda Item:

Background:

Information:

Fiscal Impact:

Recommendation:

Administration ITEM 7.2

Leslie Baugh
Administrative Services
(512)-715-3217
Ibaugh@cityofburnet.com

Agenda Item Brief

February 12, 2019

Discuss and consider action: Regarding the Fox property, Lot
30: L. Baugh

Council previously approved staff to pursue acquisition of
land owned by the Big Leaf LTD, adjacent to the western
boundary of the airport to ensure future growth and
expansion of the airport (Exhibit “A”).

To fund the purchase of Big Leaf LTD property, at the May
22, 2018 regular City Council meeting, Council approved
TxDOT a Non-Primary Entitlement (NPE) grant agreement in
the amount of $500,000.

The NPE grant is a 90/10 grant match from TxDOT Aviation.
The Airport’'s 10% match of $50,000 is included in the grant
agreement amount of $500,000.

TxDOT Aviation Appraisal Review Board has approved the
appraisal of the Big Leaf LTD tract and is ready to extend
official offer(s) to purchase the tract.

The Airport is responsible for 100% of costs exceeding
$500,000 until the fiscal year 2019 NPE grant funds are
available and TxDOT will be able to reimburse up to
$150,000 of the exceeded project costs.

To be determined by Council



Exhibit “A”

e EUGENIO PEREZ SURVEY NO. 41, A-872
N STATE OF TEXAS
VOLUME 508 PAGE 19 B.CRPR.

db LEAF, LTD.
/ VOLUME 618 PAGE 569

R.P.R.B.C.
LONE STAR GAS CO. FIFE LINE
ESNT PER VoLIME 103, EAGE 4az <6 DOC 201401085
9 & VOLUME 250 PAGE 823 H.C.D.R: 0.P.R.B.C.
)
% g ,_
-4,_‘3;'; CITY OF BURNET
- DOC 201401086
225
e T A
Po”
-
m:./ZE:
S5 A
o
o
el
[INE_TABLE
LINE_| BEARING DISTANCE
L1 S23'3E'20°W | 384.00°
(2 1144 G0'E | 541.00°
B 78718'00"W | 180.00°
L4 11°44°00°E_| 273,007
LS 4415°30" 788,43
L& 74'4500°W | 875.81
L7 S75%63 00 486,50
L8 14°07°00"W | 286.62
s 75°53'00°E |_429.16"
10 | N140700°W | 203,00°
L1 | S75E3'00"W | 428.16
L12 [ Nt407'00" 57.38"
PARENT TRACT: 101,80 AC.
PARCEL_30: 61,30 AC Q 280 500
REMAINDER (ACREAGE) 38.50 AC. P —
REMAIMDER (LOT 2) 200 AC, SCALE 1"= 500
FND. 3/8" IR
LEGEND -
BEARING  ORIENTATION  REFERENCE

T TEXAS

BEARNG PP~ POWER POLE

DINA SYSTEM, CENTRAL  ZOME, NORTH .

AMERICAN DATUM OF B3 (NAD 83), 2007 ADJUSTMENT, o E(T"Hggmlé’g qlaff-:[,“"LESS
THROUGH  NGE  MOMUMENT  AB2873(T27A).  ALL i B

COORDINATES AND DISTANCES ARE SURFACE VALUES L] SET 3/8" R, W/ LANDTECH CAP
IN US SURVEY FEET, AND MAY BE CONVERTED TO GRID UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
VALUES BY MULTPLYING BY A COMBINED ADJUSTMENT s E T

FACTOR OF 0.09D83536, B=DR SURNET. GOUN T

DEED RECORD
Q.P.R.B.C. = OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF
BURNET COUNTY

THIS PLAT AND CORRESPONCING .DESCRIPTION WERE
PREFARED FROM A SURVEY MADE ON THE GROUND
UNDER MY SUPERVISION DURING THE MONTH GF

RF.RB.C. - REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF
OCTQBER P15, BURNET COUNTY
M U.E. — UTILITY EASEMENT
10/30,/2018 B.SL - BUILDING SETBACK LINE
NHUY NGUYEN Q i PA
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LA SURVEYDR NO. 8409

—_—t— = WIRE FENCE

——

g SU P 7 — WOOD FENCE
LANDTECH || SURVEY PLAT OF iEE BiELE

s’ ¥ : | BURNET MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
9ns|nﬁeelr:g._ul\;c}lng 61.50 ACRES .

e Torks 0 (2,670,098 SQ. FT.) KATE SRADDOCK FIELR
T:713-861-7068 F; 713-861-4131

TxBPE No. F-1364 * T¥BPLS No. 10013100

BURNET, TEXAS
CSJ NO. 1014BRNET




	02-12-2019 Regular Council Meeting Agenda
	Item 1.1 Proclamation-Veterans Suicide Awareness Month
	Proclamation
	OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL FOR THE
	CITY OF BURNET
	Veterans Suicide Awareness Month



	Item 2.1 19-01-22 RM Minutes
	Item 3.1 PH- Eagles Nest Preliminary Plat
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 3.2 PH Halbert Drive Rezone
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 3.3 PH-Rezone 1139 Mormon Mill
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 3.4 PH- Tree Ordinance
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.1 Tree Ordinance
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.2 Eagles Nest Variance
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.3 Eagles Nest Preliminary Plat
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.3 Eagles Nest Preliminary Plat-Attachment
	Item 4.4 Rezone Halbert Drive
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.5 Rezone 1139 Morman Mill
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.6 PD-Ballistic Vests Purchase
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 5.1(E.3) Annual Racial Profiling Report
	Item 6.1 ES-Ward Property
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 6.2 ES-Fox Property
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 7.1 ES-Ward Property
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 7.2 ES-Fox Property
	Agenda Item Brief


